R-2025-326 Ratified: 09/17/2025

COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

Between the CITY OF HOLLYWOOD



and the

HOLLYWOOD, FLORIDA, CITY EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2432 OF AFSCME, AFL-CIO A.K.A. AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES Local 2432

GENERAL



October 1, 2025,

through

September 30, 2028

Table of Contents

ARTICLE 1 - EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION AGREEMENT	4
ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION	5
ARTICLE 3 – ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS	6
ARTICLE 4 – DISTRIBUTION OF AGREEMENT	7
ARTICLE 5 – NON-DISCRIMINATION	8
ARTICLE 6 - MANAGEMENT SECURITY	9
ARTICLE 7 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	10
ARTICLE 8 - NULLIFICATION OF PAYROLL DUES DEDUCTIONS	12
ARTICLE 9 - UNION BUSINESS	13
ARTICLE 10 - UNION STEWARDS	14
ARTICLE 11 – WAGES	15
ARTICLE 12 - ASSIGNMENT PAY	16
ARTICLE 13 - CERTIFICATION PAY	18
ARTICLE 14 - WORK SCHEDULING AND OVERTIME	23
ARTICLE 15 - LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE	29
ARTICLE 16 - VOLUNTARY DEMOTIONS/LATERAL TRANSFERS	30
ARTICLE 17 – PERFORMANCE REVIEW/PROBATIONAY PERIODS	32
ARTICLE 18 - PENSION AND PENSION PLAN	35
ARTICLE 19 - REST PERIODS	
ARTICLE 20 - SICK LEAVE	37
ARTICLE 21 - VOTING TIME	
ARTICLE 22 - CONTRACTING OR SUB-CONTRACTING	42
ARTICLE 23 - WORK UNIFORMS AND LAUNDRY	43
ARTICLE 24 - HEALTH AND WELLNESS PLAN	47
ARTICLE 25 - SAFETY COMMITTEE, EQUIPMENT AND APPAREL	52
ARTICLE 26 - WORK RULES	54
ARTICLE 27 - UNION BULLETIN BOARDS	56
ARTICLE 28 - LAY-OFF AND RECALL	57
ARTICLE 29 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE AND ARBITRATION	59
ARTICLE 30 - FMLA / SPECIAL LEAVE / LEAVE OF ABSENCE	64

ARTICLE 31 - HOLIDAYS	68
ARTICLE 32 - VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT	71
ARTICLE 33 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	72
ARTICLE 34 - JURY DUTY AND SUBPOENAS	73
ARTICLE 35 – LONGEVITY COMPENSATION	74
ARTICLE 36 - VACATIONS	75
ARTICLE 37 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION	77
ARTICLE 38 - FOOD AND SUPPLIES	80
ARTICLE 39 - SERVICES TO THE UNION	81
ARTICLE 40 - SERVICE POINTS - CIVIL SERVICE EXAMS	82
ARTICLE 41 - SENIORITY	86
ARTICLE 42 - PREVAILING RIGHTS/BENEFITS	88
ARTICLE 43 - WORKERS' COMPENSATION/SUPPLEMENTAL COMPENSATION	89
ARTICLE 44 - CLASSIFICATION EVALUATION AND REVISION	92
ARTICLE 45 - SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL	
ARTICLE 46 – DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE	95
ARTICLE 47 – EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM	96
ARTICLE 48 – BLOOD TIME COMPENSATION	98
ARTICLE 49 - REGULARLY SCHEDULED PART-TIME EMPLOYEES	99
ARTICLE 50 - SEVERABILITY	103
ARTICLE 51 – DURATION OF AGREEMENT/EFFECTIVE DATES	104
APPENDIX A - PERC CERTIFICATION 2000 AND 2018	115
ADDENDIX B - CLASSIFICATION TITLES AND SALARY RANGES	116

<u>ARTICLE 1 - EMPLOYEE ORGANIZATION AGREEMENT</u>

- 1.1. THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the City of Hollywood, Florida, ("Employer" or the "City") and the Hollywood, Florida, City Employees, Local 2432, AFSCME, AFL-CIO American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFL- CIO) ("Union"). It is the intent and purpose of this Agreement to assure sound and mutually beneficial working and economic relationships between the parties, to provide an orderly, prompt, and peaceful means of resolving any misunderstandings or differences which may arise, and to set forth basic and full agreement between the parties concerning the rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, pensions, and other terms and conditions of employment. It is understood that the City of Hollywood is engaged in furnishing essential public services which vitally affect the health, safety, comfort, and well-being of the public, and both parties hereto recognize the need for continuous and reliable service to the public.
- 1.2. "Employee" shall mean all persons employed by the City who are designated as "included" in the Florida Public Employee Relations Commission ("PERC") Certification #151 ("Bargaining Unit"), any amendment/clarification to that certification and any persons employed by the City in new or revised job titles upon which the parties have mutually agreed subsequent to execution of this Collective Bargaining Agreement ("Agreement" or "CBA").

ARTICLE 2 - RECOGNITION

- 2.1. The Employer recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent, with respect to wages, hours, pensions, and other conditions of employment, for all Employees in the Bargaining Unit, per Florida PERC Certification #151 (as clarified by UC-2000-19 and 2018-001), attached as Appendix "A," and as may be amended in the future by the appropriate authority of the State of Florida.
- 2.2. The City shall be represented by the City Manager, or a person or persons designated in writing to the Union by the City Manager. The City Manager shall have the authority to execute an Agreement on behalf of the City upon being directed by an official resolution of the City Commission. It is understood that the City representatives are the official representatives of the City for the purpose of negotiating with the Union and administration of the Agreement between the parties. Negotiations entered with persons other than those as defined in this section, regardless of their position or association with the City, shall be deemed unauthorized, and shall have no weight of authority in committing or in any way obligating the City.
- 2.3. The City recognizes and shall deal with the appropriate Union Business Agent, International Representatives, and any other Union members and/or attorneys, designated by the Union President, in those matters relating to collective bargaining and administration of the Agreement between the parties. Changes of representatives shall be submitted to the City Manager, in writing, by the Union President.

ARTICLE 3 – ADDITIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS

- 3.1. The parties agree that if additional classifications are created, the parties shall meet as soon as practicable to negotiate concerning whether these new classifications shall be included in the Bargaining Unit. The City and the Union agree to request a Unit Clarification from PERC as soon as practicable for agreed upon classifications.
- 3.2. If a position's duties change substantially, which in the opinion of the City convert the position from a Bargaining Unit position to a position that should be excluded from the Bargaining Unit, the City and the Union agree that the City shall notify the Union of such potential changes and the basis for its opinion. The City and the Union agree to request a Unit Clarification from PERC as soon as practicable for classifications that the parties agree should be included or excluded from the Bargaining Unit.

ARTICLE 4 – DISTRIBUTION OF AGREEMENT

The City will place an electronic copy of this Agreement on the City's internet and intranet, which is accessible to all Employees.

<u>ARTICLE 5 – NON-DISCRIMINATION</u>

- 5.1. No Employee covered by this Agreement will be discriminated against by the City or the Union with respect to the job benefits or other terms or conditions of employment because of the Employee's membership or non-membership in the Union.
- 5.2. Both the City and the Union oppose discrimination on the basis of age, race, creed, color, national origin, gender, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity and/or religion. However, the parties also recognize that the City has established an internal procedure to investigate and resolve alleged cases of discrimination which is in addition to existing and adequate procedures established by Broward County, the State of Florida and the Federal Government. Accordingly, it is agreed that allegations of employment discrimination cannot be processed through the contractual grievance/arbitration procedure.

<u>ARTICLE 6 - MANAGEMENT SECURITY</u>

- 6.1. The Employer and the Union recognize the mutually beneficial effects of a harmonious and cooperative relationship between the parties and agree to comply diligently and fully with the requirements of the Florida Public Employees Relations Act ("PERA").
- 6.2. For the duration of the Agreement, there will be no strikes, work stoppages, picketing, slowdowns, or other concerted failure or refusal to perform assigned work by the Employees of the Union, and there will be no lockouts by the City. The Union guarantees to support the City fully in maintaining operations in every way.
- 6.3. Any Employee who participates in or promotes a strike, work stoppage, picket line, slowdown, or concerted failure or refusal to perform assigned work may be discharged or otherwise disciplined by the City.
- 6.4. It is recognized by the parties that the City is responsible for and engaged in activities which are the basis of the health and welfare of our citizens, and that any violation of the Article would give rise to irreparable damage to the City and to the public at large. Accordingly, it is understood and agreed that in the event of any violation of this Article, the City shall be entitled to seek and obtain immediate injunctive relief, provided, however, it is agreed that the Union shall not be responsible for any act alleged to constitute a breach of this Article if the Union did not instigate or support in any manner such action and, further, that the Union has used every reasonable means to prevent or terminate such action.
- 6.5. Picketing, as referred to in this Article, shall mean any action by way of demonstrating which may have the effect of preventing or discouraging any Employee from coming to work, or have the effect of preventing or discouraging any supplier or contractor from entering any City premise. No Employee shall picket concerning a matter that is subject to the grievance or arbitration procedure.

ARTICLE 7 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- 7.1. Except as provided in this Agreement, it is the right of the Employer to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of its constituent agencies, set standards of services to be offered to the public, and exercise control and discretion over its organization and operations. The Employer retains, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and constitution of the State of Florida and the United States, and the laws of the City and any modifications made thereto, to manage the affairs of the City and direction of the workforce, including, but not limited to the following:
 - a) to manage its affairs efficiently and economically, including the determination of the organization, quantity, and quality of services to be rendered; the control of materials, tools, and equipment to be used; the discontinuation of any services, materials and methods of operation, and the determination of the number, location and type of facilities and installations; and
 - b) to determine the care, maintenance and operation of equipment used for and on behalf of the purposes of the City; and
 - c) to sub-contract to ensure operational efficiencies in accordance with the Procurement Code and or purchase all materials, supplies or services related thereof subject to the provisions of Article 22; and
 - d) to hire, assign, fire, demote, suspend or otherwise discipline for just and proper cause, promote and lay off Employees; to direct the workforce and to establish work schedules including lunch and rest periods; to determine the number of Employees assigned to any job, assignment or operation; and
 - e) to determine the selection standards for specific employment, to select Employees for promotions or transfer to supervisory or other positions and to determine the qualifications and competency of Employees to perform available work; to establish work and productivity standards and, from time to time change those standards; to transfer or promote Employees from one classification, division or shift to another; and
 - f) to establish or continue policies, practices and procedures for conduct of operations and to change or abolish such policies, practices, or procedures;

to adopt, revise and enforce work and safety rules and carry out cost and general improvement programs provided same are not inconsistent with this Agreement and do not impact mandatory subjects of bargaining.

- 7.2. The above rights of the City are not all-inclusive but indicate the type of matters or rights that belong to and are inherent in the City in its capacity as management. Any of the rights, powers, and authority the City had prior to entering this CBA are retained by the City except as specifically abridged, delegated, granted or modified by this Agreement.
- 7.3. If the City fails to exercise any one or more of the above functions from time to time, this will not be deemed a waiver of the City's right to exercise any or all such functions.

<u>ARTICLE 8 - NULLIFICATION OF PAYROLL DUES DEDUCTIONS</u>

- 8.1. Chapter 2023-35 Laws of Florida, Senate Bill 256 (SB 256) was approved by the state legislature and signed into law and specifically addresses the issue of public employers collecting dues on behalf of civilian unions through payroll deduction. As a result, Fla. Stat. §447.303(a) now prohibits the collection of civilian bargaining unit union dues via salary deduction by a public employer. The City intends to fully comply with the statute and will not collect union dues via salary deduction.
- 8.2. The Union will indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless against any claims made and against any suit instituted against the City on account of any non-deduction of Union dues.
- 8.3. The Union will provide a copy of its application for renewal registration relating to the City's Employees on the same day the application is submitted to PERC in accordance with Fla. Stat. §447.305 (4).
- 8.4. Upon request, the City shall provide the Union a list of all Employees in the Bargaining Unit represented by the Union. This spreadsheet data file list shall contain the Employee ID, Employee's name, telephone number, complete physical/residential address, personal email address if known, department where employed, employment status and job title.

ARTICLE 9 - UNION BUSINESS

- 9.1. The Local Union President and/or a representative of the Local Union President shall be allowed time off work with pay, up to 416 hours per fiscal year, to attend during working hours City Commission meetings, Pension Board meetings, meetings with City Administrators and/or Elected Officials that relate to joint City and Union business, and pre-negotiation meetings (during such times that negotiations for a successor Agreement are on-going) (collectively, "Union Business"). Hours not used during the fiscal year shall not roll over to the next fiscal year. The City will not pay employees for time spent conducting Union Business while off-duty. On all such occasions, the Union President and/or representative shall give notice of any such meeting to their supervisor and the Office of Human Resources ("HR"). Approval shall not be unreasonably withheld by any of their supervisors.
- 9.2. The Employer agrees to allow two Union members, designated in writing by the Local President, up to 10 days each off without pay each calendar year to attend Union seminars, conventions and other Union functions. These days off may not be permitted to accrue from year to year if not used. In order to ensure proper coverage of assignments, the Division Head should be notified no later than 20 days prior to the aforementioned events.
- 9.3. Up to seven persons designated as part of the Union bargaining team shall be permitted to attend negotiations without loss of pay, provided that the negotiation sessions occur during the Employee's regular working hours. Additionally, the Union recognizes that the City is engaged in furnishing essential public services vital to the citizens of Hollywood. Therefore, the Union will make a reasonable attempt not to have more than two members from the same classification in the same work unit as members of the Union negotiating team. However, this does not apply to elected union officials who are members of the team.

ARTICLE 10 - UNION STEWARDS

- 10.1. The City will recognize up to 10 stewards from the Bargaining Unit. Of the 10 stewards, one shall be designated by the Union as the Chief Steward. In March of each year, the Union shall furnish the Director of Human Resources with the names of the Employees selected as Stewards and Chief Steward as well as the division/department for which they are responsible. In the event of a change in the designated Stewards/Chief Steward, the Director of Human Resources will be notified in writing immediately.
- 10.2. A Steward or Chief Steward may investigate and discuss grievances and Agreement questions or complaints during working hours in their respective areas (or any area in the case of a Chief Steward), if they first receive permission of the Division Head or, in his/her absence, his/her designee. Such permission shall not be unreasonably denied. The Union shall not make an unreasonable number of requests.
- 10.3. The Union may process grievances in accordance with provisions of Article 29-Grievance Procedure and Arbitration. However, only one representative of the Union shall be permitted to process a grievance during working hours until such grievance reaches Step 2/3. When a grievance reaches Step 2/3, the representative may participate in grievance processing during working hours.

ARTICLE 11 – WAGES

- 11.1. Employees whose base pay (excluding Longevity Pay, Assignment Pay, and Certification Pay, collectively, "Enhancements") is below the top of the pay range for their position will receive a pay increase the first full pay period on or after October 1, 2025, provided that the increase does not place their base pay above the pay range for their position. If it does, the Employee will receive the percentage increase up to the percentage that places them at the top of the pay range and the dollar equivalent of the remaining percentage in a lump sum.
- 11.2. Employees whose base pay, as defined above, is at or above the top of the pay range on October 1 of each fiscal year shall receive a lump sum payment that is equal to the total percentage increase for that fiscal year based on their base pay.
- 11.3. Effective the first full pay period on or after October 1, 2025, October 1, 2026, and October 1, 2027, the pay ranges within the bargaining unit will increase as follows:
 - October 1, 2025 2%
 - October 1, 2026 2%
 - October 1, 2027 2%
- 11.4. The new minimum and maximum pay range for each job classification within the Bargaining Unit is contained in Appendix B. The City shall have the right to hire employees within the pay range of the job classification.
- 11.5. Certification pay is calculated using the sum of an Employee's base pay, wage increases due to Cost of Living Adjustment ("COLA"), and Longevity Pay. Such sum shall be collectively referred to as the "Adjusted Base Rate of Pay."
- 11.6. Employees may be eligible to receive a performance or sign-on incentive in accordance with HR-096 Performance/Sign-On Pay Incentive Policy for performance that is extraordinary and exemplary or for accepting employment in positions difficult to fill and/or where there is a labor shortage. The City agrees to notify the Union when an employee is hired along with the amount of the incentive offered in accordance with this policy.

ARTICLE 12 - ASSIGNMENT PAY

- 12.1. An Employee meeting minimum position requirements assigned to temporarily assume most duties and responsibilities of an incumbent Employee with a classification of a higher pay grade shall receive the Employee's Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements, and a 5% increase in the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay, for the time assigned to the classification. However, should the temporary assignment continue for 25 working days or more, the Employee will continue to receive a 5% increase above the Employee's Adjusted Base Rate of Pay, or the minimum salary range for the assigned position, whichever is higher. Temporary assignments that continue for more than 120 days will be evaluated by the City and the Union. The continuation of assignment will be by mutual consent.
- 12.2. In the event an Employee is assigned to work in a vacant position within a classification of a higher pay grade, the Employee will receive the Employee's Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements, and a 5% increase above the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay, or the minimum of the salary range of the assigned position, whichever is higher. For this provision, a vacant position is one in which there is no incumbent.
- 12.3. An Employee assigned to temporarily assume most duties and responsibilities of an incumbent Employee with a classification of a higher pay grade that is outside of this Bargaining Unit shall be paid according to the following table:

Temporary Assignment	Pay for Temporary Assignment
General to Confidential	5% or minimum of the pay grade
General to Professional	10% or minimum of the pay grade
General to Supervisory	15% or minimum of the pay grade
General to Management/Executive	20% or minimum of the pay grade

The Assignment Pay in this Article shall apply only to time periods of at least one full shift when the assigned Employee is working for a Full-Time Employee in a higher classification. If, however, the assigned Employee is working for a Part-

Time Employee of a higher classification then the Assignment Pay shall apply only to time periods of at least one half of the assigned Employee's shift. If an Employee is assigned to work in a higher classification for more than one full shift, the Assignment Pay will begin on the first day the Employee assumes the higher classification. Beach Safety Employees who are assigned to a higher classification for one full shift on a recurring basis shall receive the Assignment Pay percentage as defined in Section 1 of this Article for each shift assigned to a higher classification. There shall be no Assignment Pay during a declared emergency, except as authorized by the City Manager or designee.

- 12.4. All Community Service Officers who are assigned to perform Traffic Homicide duties (i.e. accidents involving fatalities or serious bodily injury) and who have successfully completed the required courses (currently Basic Homicide Investigation, Interview and Interrogations, and Courtroom Testimony), will continue to receive a 5% Assignment Pay increase above their Adjusted Base Rate of Pay, while assigned to the Traffic Homicide Investigation (THI) division.
- 12.5. Regularly scheduled Part-Time Employees shall be eligible for seasonal assignments and paid in accordance with Section 1 of this Article. Additionally, regularly scheduled Part-Time Employees who have accepted and worked seasonal assignments shall automatically return to their previous regularly scheduled part-time position at completion of the seasonal assignment.
- 12.6. Employees given assignments by the Department or Division Head as lead workers in responsible charge of a crew or work unit, consisting of at least two employees other than the designated lead worker, will receive additional compensation in the amount of 5% above their Adjusted Base Rate of Pay.
- 12.7. Employees in the Public Works Department assigned to the "Concrete Crew" shall receive additional compensation in the amount of 3.75% above their Adjusted Base Rate of Pay for the duration of the assignment.
- 12.8. The City Manager may provide Incentive Pay to any Employees working outside of their job description on special projects in accordance with the HR -096 Performance Pay & Sign-On Pay Incentive Policy.

ARTICLE 13 - CERTIFICATION PAY

- 13.1. Upon attainment of a State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection ("DEP"), Water or Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Certification (Class C license), any Plant Operator I, Plant Operator I Rotator, and Utility Shift Supervisor will continue to receive a 5% differential above the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay as illustrated in the table below.
- 13.2. Upon attainment of a State of Florida, DEP, Water or Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Certification (Class B license), any certified Plant Operator I, Plant Operator I Rotator, or Utility Shift Supervisor will receive a 2.5% differential over the Class C license entitlement for a total of 7.5% differential above the adjusted base rate of pay. Effective October 1, 2025, an additional 1.25% will be added to the Class B license differential for a total of 8.75% above the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay. Effective October 1, 2026, another 1.25% will be added to the Class B license differential, for a 10% differential cap above the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay as illustrated in the table below.
- 13.3. Upon attainment of a State of Florida, DEP, Water or Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Certification (Class A license), any certified Plant Operator I, Plant Operator I Rotator, or Utility Shift Supervisor will receive a 2.5% differential over the Class B license entitlement for a total of 10% differential over the adjusted base rate of pay. Effective October 1, 2025, another 1.25% will be added to the Class A license differential for a total of 11.25% above the adjusted base rate of pay. Effective October 1, 2026, another 1.25% will be added to the Class A license differential for a total of 12.5% above the adjusted base rate of pay. Effective October 1, 2027, an additional 1.25% will be added to the Class A license differential, for a total of 13.75% above the adjusted base rate of pay as illustrated in the table below.

	Currently, through			
Certificate	9/30/2025	10/01/25	10/01/26	10/01/27
С	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%	5.00%
В	7.50%	8.75%	10.00%	10.00%
A	10.00%	11.25%	12.50%	13.75%

- 13.4. Utility Operations Supervisors, Senior Utilities Field Technicians ("SUFT") and Utilities Field Technicians shall receive a 2.5% differential above the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay upon the attainment of each of the following certifications based upon the subsequent schedule and guidelines. Additionally, Meter Technicians will receive a % differential as set forth in "d", below.
 - a. Utilities Field Technicians 2.5% per "C Certification" (water, sewer, or stormwater) to a maximum of 7.5% above the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay. "C Certification" incentives shall be specific to the Utilities Field Technician Classification. Promotion or transfer to a Senior Utilities Field Technician or Utility Operations Supervisor will include, if a "C Certification" has/had been attained, a maximum 2.5% Certification Pay. All other Certification Pay will cease.
 - b. Senior Utilities Field Technicians per "B Certification" (water, sewer, or stormwater) to a maximum of 5% above the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay. "B Certification" incentives shall be specific to the Senior Utilities Field Technician classification and the Utility Operations Supervisor only and shall include a maximum of 2.5% for having attained a "C" Certification. Each Certification Pay increase received must be based upon the required levels of certifications held in each of the three separate disciplines (i.e., (1) water; (2) sewer; and (3) stormwater) For example: a "C" Certification in water, a "B" Certification in stormwater would result in a total Certification Pay increase of 7.5%. On the other hand, a "C" Certification in water, a "B" Certification in water, and a "B" Certification in stormwater would result in a total Certification Pay increase of 5% because two of the three certifications held are in the same discipline. Promotion to any position other than Utility Operations Supervisor will cease all Certification Pay.
 - c. Utility Operation Supervisors 2.5% per one "B Certification," and 2.5% for one "A Certification" (water, sewer or stormwater) to a maximum of 5% above the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay. "A Certification" and/or "B Certification" incentives shall be specific to the Utility Operations Supervisor

- ("B Certification" also to SUFT) and shall include a maximum of 2.5% for having attained a "C Certification." Promotion and/or transfer to any other position(s) will cease all Certification Pay.
- d. Meter Technicians Effective October 1, 2025, Meter Technicians will receive 1.25% for a certification in Backflow Repair or a Class C Water license. Effective October 1, 2026, an additional 1.25% will be added for a total of 2.5% differential above adjusted base rate of pay.
- 13.5. Beginning July 15, 2009, Treatment Plant Mechanic I, Treatment Plant Mechanic II, and Chief Utility Mechanics, who have attained "A Certification," "B Certification," or "C Certification" prior to July 15, 2009, shall receive Certification Pay as specified in Section 13.4 of this Article. Treatment Plant Mechanic I, Treatment Plant Mechanic II, and Chief Utility Mechanics hired prior to July 15, 2009 (excluding any employee covered by the first sentence in this Section), who attain a "C Certification" or higher in water or sewer (whichever is applicable to their assignment) on or after July 15, 2009, shall receive a maximum of 2.5% Certification Pay. Effective October 1, 2025, an additional 1.25% will be added for a total of 3.75% differential above adjusted base rate of pay. Effective October 1, 2026, another 1.25% will be added for a total differential of 5.0% above adjusted base rate of pay.
- 13.6. If a Commercial Driver's License ("CDL") is required, and the City has authorized the Employee to enroll in a CDL Certification Course, the City agrees to pay the company providing the CDL Certification Course directly, up to a maximum of \$2,200.00. The authorization to enroll in the CDL Certification Course will be determined solely by the City. The City shall not reimburse the Employee for a medical Certification for the CDL license as the City qualifies for an exemption under the Florida Statutes. Employees desiring to take a CDL Certification Course must submit a written request for approval to their Department Director or designee. Employees shall be responsible for reimbursing the City for the entire cost of this benefit should they leave City employment voluntarily within two years of receiving such benefit. This benefit shall only be provided if the Employee obtains the CDL while employed by the City. In rare instances, should an Employee schedule and pay for the CDL certification course prior to authorization and such CDL Certification is a

- requirement of their position, the City may reimburse the Employee for the cost of the certification course with sufficient documentation.
- 13.7. In this Article, use of the terms "Class A, Class B, Class C", as well as the terms "A Certification," "B Certification," and "C Certification" shall be considered interchangeable with the corresponding terms of "Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3" (e.g., the term "Class A" and the term "A Certification" are the same as the term "Level 1" as used in this Article, etc. Effective October 9, 2013, Certifications from the Florida Stormwater Association ("FSA") will not be accepted as a substitute for either State of Florida certifications or Florida Water and Pollution Control Operators Association ("FWPCOA") Certifications, except for those employees who already obtained and received recognition for an FSA Certification before October 9, 2013, for as long as those employees maintain that/those FSA Certification(s). Failure to maintain the FSA Certification will result in the Employee's forfeiture of that Certification with no right to re-qualify for Certification pay based on that FSA Certification.
- 13.8. An Employee who is receiving Certification pay as provided in Sections 13.1-13.5 and who loses Certification equal to 5% or more as a result of a promotion, shall not receive a reduction in salary upon promotion. Further, if the promotion is to one of the following positions within the Public Utilities Department, the Employee shall not lose any Certification pay and shall be entitled to receive a 5% promotional increase:
 - a. Utility Shift Supervisor;
 - b. Chief Utility Mechanic;
 - c. WTP and WWTP Operations Superintendent;
 - d. Operations Supervisors; and
 - e. Assistant Underground Utilities Manager.
- 13.9. Beach Safety personnel who are certified as Emergency Medical Technicians ("EMTs") shall receive a 5% differential above the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay provided that their Certification remains active. The City shall not be responsible for the cost of obtaining such a Certification nor may the Employee obtain such

certification during working hours. Effective October 1, 2025, an additional 1.25% will be added for a differential of 6.25% above adjusted base rate of pay. Effective October 1, 2026, an additional 1.25% will be added for a differential of 7.50% above adjusted base rate of pay. Effective October 1, 2027, an additional 1.25% will be added, for a total differential of 8.75% above adjusted base rate of pay.

13.10. Any Certification pay provided in this Article is calculated using the Employee's Adjusted Base Rate of Pay and shall be treated as part of the Employee's Base Pay for purposes of the pension plan's definition of compensation and employee contributions.

.

ARTICLE 14 - WORK SCHEDULING AND OVERTIME

- 14.1. The current normal workweek for all Full-Time Employees shall consist of 40 hours per week. Under no circumstances will benefits/rights associated with Full-Time Employees be reduced or modified if the workweek is altered. The normal workweek for all Full-Time Employees shall consist of 40 hours per week, beginning with the Employee's first regular shift. The normal workday shall consist of eight or 10 consecutive hours of work in a 24-hour period.
- 14.2. The Employer reserves the right to designate a change in the work schedule, weeks, days, hours and shifts of its employees; however, no individual Employee shall have his/ her work schedule or day off schedule changed for the purpose of avoiding the payment of overtime, nor shall any changes in work schedule be made in an arbitrary or capricious manner. In any event, notice of not less than 8 or 10 working days depending upon their schedule shall be given to the affected Employees and an authorized representative(s) of the Union. Upon the request of the Employee or the Union, the employer agrees to meet and confer with the above referenced Union Official(s) and/or the Employee. Should the City not comply with the notice requirements, and if appropriate, the above referenced meeting, the Employee schedule will not be changed. Further, scheduling changes will not be used for disciplinary purposes.
- 14.3. Work schedules and regular days off can be changed to provide coverage for any unforeseen emergencies. The parties mentioned above will be notified as soon as practicable.
- 14.4. The Employer and the Union recognize that certain type of activities operating on a continuous basis require different treatment as to hours worked, and agree that in those instances, an eight or 10 consecutive hour shift, including lunch period, and breaks per Article 19, may be allowed. The following positions will be permitted to operate in a flexible but not split shift work schedule for such events that occur sporadically.
 - a. In the Public Works Department, personnel assigned to beach and ball field maintenance
 - b. In the Parks & Recreation Department, program supervisors.

- c. Code Compliance Personnel required to attend civic association meetings etc.
- 14.5. Employees assigned to the Police Department who are ordered to extended standby by the Court Liaison Officer will receive one hour of compensatory time at Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements for such inconvenience. This section shall not apply if the Employee is called into court during this period and callback pay is provided as in Section 14.7.
- 14.6. Employees assigned to observe and monitor lift stations and pumps during weather events to facilitate the City's emergency response, including assignments on holidays will be compensated at the Employee's regular hourly wage, plus five dollars (\$5.00) hourly; and hours worked beyond the Employees' normal work schedule, will be compensated at the rate of time and one-half (a contractually agreed upon equivalent to an Employee's overtime rate), plus five dollars (\$5.00) hourly. All hours worked (whether normal work schedule hours or assignments during weather events will count toward a determination as to whether an Employee has worked in excess of forty (40) hours for FLSA overtime purposes when determining whether subsequent hours during that weekly period are subject to being compensated at the Employee's statutorily required overtime compensation rate. These assignments shall not serve as the basis to eliminate or reduce an Employees regularly scheduled work hours during the pay period in accordance with Section 14.1 above.
- 14.7. An Employee who is called in to work outside their normal work schedule will be guaranteed a minimum of three hours pay at the rate of time and one-half the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements regardless of the number of hours worked during the work week. This does not apply in the case of scheduled overtime, or if the call-out occurs within two hours of the start of the Employee's normal work schedule.
- 14.8. Opportunities to work overtime will be distributed as equally as practicable among Employees in the same job classification in the same work section and area starting with the most senior Employee, provided the Employees are qualified to perform the overtime work required. Overtime and compensatory time opportunities will be

- recorded and maintained. These records will be available for review by the Union and employees. If an Employee establishes that he/she has not received his/her fair share of overtime opportunities, such Employee shall have first preference to future overtime work.
- 14.9. Scheduling for overtime and holiday work in the Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant shall be assigned from a rotation list composed of qualified operators grouped by classification, provided a certified operator is always on duty, assigned to the Main Control Room. Qualified, certified supervisory personnel may be called upon, at the discretion of Management, for appointment to overtime or holiday work based upon the unavailability of Employees with the Operator classification.
- 14.10.By mutual agreement between the Employer and the Employee involved, compensatory time at the appropriate rate may be granted in lieu of premium overtime pay. Such compensatory time may be accumulated up to 80 hours and is to be used/paid out within the 180-calendar day period succeeding the date on which the overtime is worked. If a written request is received prior to or within 180 days after the date on which the overtime is worked, the compensatory time off shall, subject to Employer's responsibility to maintain efficient operations, be scheduled and granted as requested by the Employee to be used within the 180 days. If the Employer does not schedule the compensatory time in accordance with the Employee's request, or at some other time mutually agreed to, prior to the completion of the 180-calendar day period succeeding the date on which the overtime is worked, the Employee shall receive a payout at the appropriate rate of pay in lieu of paid time off.
- 14.11.Time-and-one-half the Employee's Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements shall be paid for all work performed more than 40 hours of work in any work week. Paid Floating Holidays used for time off at a later date of being earned and Paid Vacation Leave shall be considered as work performed for the purpose of counting 40 hours in any workweek. Floating Holidays which are "cashed out" in the pay period of being earned, Sick Leave, Sick to Vacation Leave, Sick to Personal Leave, Wellness Leave, and Compensatory Time shall not count as work performed for the purposes of counting 40 hours in any workweek.
- 14.12. In no instance shall standby be involuntarily assigned to regularly scheduled days

- off, except by mutual agreement.
- 14.13. Upon appropriate authorization, should it be required that an Employee respond to a telephone conversation in which substantive information is exchanged that relates to an Employee's specific skills and ability, the Employee will be compensated one hour at the Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements.
- 14.14. Specific Divisions or Classifications.
 - a. Plant Operator I Rotator and Plant Operator I Trainee Rotator ("Rotator"):
 - All Rotators shall be assigned to a two-week work schedule, the schedule to be received one week in advance of the commencement of the schedule.
 - ii. No Rotator shall be scheduled to work and, pursuant to that schedule, will not work more than 16 hours in a 24-hour period and not more than 24 hours in a 48-hour period.
 - iii. All Rotators shall have two consecutive days off.
 - iv. All Rotators who commence working a scheduled shift shall have the right to work that entire shift.
 - v. Section 14.2 shall not apply to the modification of the work schedules of Rotators.
 - vi. Section 14.7 regarding "calling Employees to work outside their normal work schedules," shall apply to Employees in the Rotator positions only after the Rotator has worked 40 hours in the specified work week.
 - vii. Article 45 Shift Differential shall not apply to Employees in the Rotator positions.
 - viii. If a Rotator position becomes vacant, a certified, licensed water or wastewater Employee who voluntarily elects to fill the position of Rotator in both the Water and Wastewater Plants will be selected. If there is no voluntary election, the City shall have the authority to assign a Plant Operator I Trainee on a temporary basis to fill the

- vacancy until such vacancy is permanently filled. The City shall not permanently assign or compel any employee to work as a Rotator.
- b) Employees designated as First Responders by the City Commission may be required, at the discretion of their supervisor, to work mandatory overtime. Such mandatory overtime, if implemented, shall be based on reverse rotating seniority. An Employee who is qualified and certified to train and who has been designated by the Chief of Police to train new employees shall receive an additional 5% when assigned for actual hours spent as a trainer. Trainers shall be selected on a rotational basis, using the same method as for overtime and vacation.
- c) Employees in the classification of Crime Scene Technician may be assigned to standby status on a weekly rotating basis. Employees assigned to standby will receive an additional 4 hours of pay per week. Standby hours will not be considered time worked for purposes of calculating overtime. In addition, Employees assigned to standby are still eligible for call out pay as stipulated in this Article.
- d) Employees in the Public Utilities Department may be assigned standby status issued by the Department Director in accordance with Departmental Rules and Regulations. Standby pay shall not be counted as hours worked for purposes of calculating overtime. Employees assigned and who worked standby will receive an additional 5 hours of pay at their enhanced rate that pay period.
- e) Employees in the Public Works Department may be assigned standby pay on a rotating basis. A standby schedule will be prepared and updated biweekly, with Employees assigned on a rotating basis each pay period. Employees must advise their supervisor, in advance, of any foreseeable absence(s). In such case, the Department may move to the next Employee in the rotation and re-slot the Employee with the foreseeable absence(s) back into immediate rotation in the same position that Employee occupied before the absence the following pay period in which the Employee is no longer absent. An Employee on standby shall not be required to remain at home in a constant state of instant readiness to report to work. However,

when notified, an Employee on standby must be able to report to the assigned worksite within 60 minutes of being notified. Standby pay will not be considered as time worked for purposes of calculating overtime. The City will allocate to each Employee assigned to standby a cellular phone and a City-issued take-home vehicle during their standby assignment if required. An Employee who has been assigned standby will be compensated five hours of pay at their enhanced rate of pay for the pay period. If the Employee is called out, call-out pay, as detailed in Article 14, Section 14.7, will additionally apply. An Employee who encounters an emergency which renders them incapable of responding while on standby, must immediately notify their supervisor (or designee). If an Employee assigned to standby fails to report to work pursuant to the stated guidelines noted above when notified, that Employee shall:

- i. Forfeit any entitlement to standby pay; and
- May be subject to disciplinary action, depending on the circumstance, decided on a case-by-case basis.
- 14.15 An Employee who utilizes approved leave during the period of assigned standby status, who verifies that they will remain available, will remain eligible for standby pay. The City will assign Employees to standby pursuant to operational needs, determined solely by the City. Standby shall not impact voluntary overtime or management rights during an emergency.

ARTICLE 15 - LABOR-MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

- 15.1. There shall be a Labor-Management Committee formed from established City Departments/Offices. The City and Union will select their own representatives. It is recognized that the size of the Committee should not be cumbersome. Human Resources will facilitate the meetings.
- 15.2. The Union membership of the Committee shall consist of persons from within the position classifications covered by this Agreement and the Management shall consist of the Director or Assistant Director of the Department/Office. Time off with pay, as required, shall be granted to Employees designated as Committee members for attendance at Labor-Management Committee meetings.
- 15.3. The Committee shall schedule to meet once every two months or at other times by mutual consent. Minutes will then be taken and kept of all Committee meetings. Meetings will be conducted during normal operating hours. If the course of the meeting should extend beyond the Union designated Employee's normal working hours, that Employee shall not be entitled to any additional compensation beyond their normal day's wage.
- 15.4. The Committee shall not engage in any labor negotiations, nor shall it be or become a vehicle for grievance handling, processing, or resolution.

ARTICLE 16 – VOLUNTARY DEMOTIONS/LATERAL TRANSFERS

- 16.1. Any Employee may voluntarily request a lateral transfer or a demotion to a lower paid position without having to take the usual examination for appointment to the lower paid position or lateral position; probationary Employees having not yet completed an initial 12-month probationary period and who are approved to transfer or demote will be required to serve a 12-month probationary period in their new position.
- 16.2. Prerequisites for such voluntary demotion/lateral transfer:
 - a. The Employee must submit the request in writing to Human Resources and must state the title of the lower/lateral position requested, the reason(s) for the request, an acknowledgment that they understand that the demotion will involve a reduction in pay unless otherwise stipulated and, once either is approved and effected, is permanent and cannot be reversed except through the regular promotional procedures for classified Employees;
 - b. The Employee must meet the minimum requirements for the lower paid/lateral position with determination as to whether or not employee meets the minimum requirements made by the Human Resources Director;
 - c. There must be a budgeted vacancy in the lower/lateral position available; no Employee holding such lower/lateral position may be involuntarily bumped out of that position for the purpose of providing room for the voluntarily demoting/laterally transferring Employee; however, such demotions or transfers shall supersede any existing eligibility lists;
 - d. The receiving Division Head may approve or disapprove acceptance of the voluntarily demoting/laterally transferring Employee;
 - e. If the Employee has completed their initial 12-month probationary period in the position for which they are requesting a transfer or demotion and has not served a probationary period in the position the Employee will be entering, a new probationary period of six months will be required; Employees not passing the 6-month probationary period will be separated from employment unless, by mutual consent of the employee and the City, and providing the position held prior is vacant, the employee may return to their previous

- position held and resume the probationary status held prior to entering the new position;
- f. Employees in the Professional, Supervisory, Police, Fire, Confidential, Executive or Management positions shall not bump into any positions in the General Employees Bargaining Unit. Employees in the above stated positions shall only be demoted or transferred into a vacant General Employees Bargaining Unit position (not desired by a Bargaining Unit Employee) with zero seniority for all purposes seniority is utilized, including but not limited to bidding vacations, schedules, overtime. Employees filling General Employee Bargaining Unit positions shall not retain any rates of pay, benefits, or terms and conditions of employment which they enjoyed in any position which they previously held with the City.
- 16.3. The voluntarily demoting/laterally transferring Employee will retain accrued leave earned prior to the effective date of the demotion/ transfer, subject to the limitations outlined in Section 16.2(f). This includes positions moving from Full-Time to Part-Time Status and Full-Time to Full-Time Status, inclusive of probationary status employees.
- 16.4. As indicated in Section 16.2(a) above, the voluntarily demoting Employee may not proceed to any higher paid position (including the classification from which demoted) unless such Employee has applied for and competed in the regular promotional examination and been certified as eligible for appointment (and promotion) in accordance with the classified system's regular promotional appointment procedures.
- 16.5. The City, upon request from the union, will advise the Union in writing of all Bargaining Unit member changes in status, including but not limited to personnel changes, whether involving compensation, leaves, administrative or otherwise.
- 16.6. The provisions of Section 16.2(d) shall be grievable but not arbitrable.

ARTICLE 17 – PERFORMANCE REVIEW/PROBATIONAY PERIODS

- 17.1. Persons employed by the City shall serve a 12-month probationary period ("Original Probationary Period") following their initial appointment. Employees shall be reviewed on or before the end of the Original Probationary Period to determine the suitability of a regular appointment. Following the completion of the Original Probationary Period, the Employee will be rated according to one of two categories:
 - Unsatisfactory
 - Satisfactory

Employees who are "Unsatisfactory" will be dismissed from employment and such dismissal shall not be subject to the grievance procedure. Employees who are "Satisfactory" will receive a regular appointment to their position.

- 17.2. There will be no merit pay increase for the duration of this Agreement.
- 17.3. The probationary period for Part-Time Employees shall be 12 months from the Employee's date of hire.
- 17.4. Full-time Employees who receive a promotion to a new full-time position, shall, upon appointment, serve a six-month Promotional Probation Period and shall receive a 5% increase to the Employee's base rate of pay or the minimum rate of the classification, whichever is greater. If the City determines there are internal equity compression impacts from a promotion, an increase higher than 5% or the minimum rate of the classification may be provided. On or before the completion date of the Promotional Probation Period, the Employee shall be evaluated to determine if the Employee's performance is "Unsatisfactory" or "Satisfactory." "Unsatisfactory" Employees shall be returned to their previous position or classification, whichever is first available, at the same pay rate from which they were promoted. "Satisfactory" Employees will continue on in their new position with a regular appointment and shall be evaluated 12 months from the completion of the Promotional Probation Period. Those employees who are successfully promoted must remain in their new position for minimum period of 12 months before being eligible for another promotion. Promotions to new positions shall change the annual salary review date of the

employee.

- 17.5. All Full-Time and regularly scheduled Part-Time Employees shall be evaluated 12 months from the completion of the Employees' Original Probation Period, and annually thereafter. If the Employee receives a promotion, then Section 17.4 above will apply.
- 17.6. Employees who receive an "Unsatisfactory" evaluation shall be re-evaluated within 90 days of the evaluation. Employees who continue to be "Unsatisfactory" shall be counseled and provided a detailed written explanation as to why the performance continues to be "Unsatisfactory." The Employee shall be given additional direction and guidance on how to improve. The Employer has the option to continue to evaluate the Employee and to warn the Employee that repeated sub-standard performance is a violation of the City of Hollywood's Work Rules.
- 17.7. Employees who do not agree with their performance review may appeal to the Division Head or Office Director and, if not resolved, to the Director of Human Resources but may not make use of the grievance or arbitration procedure. If an Employee receives two consecutive performance reviews with which the Employee disagrees, the second such review shall be grievable and arbitrable at the Employee's option. The disposition of the grievance will be placed in the Employee's personnel file.
- 17.8. The parties agree that the current performance appraisal system may be modified only by the mutual consent, in writing, of the City and the Union. The parties recognize that a performance review system is an orderly procedure that provides an Employee appropriate performance feedback. Therefore, a performance review may be conducted at any time during an Employee's employment. The system is not intended to be punitive. Continued failure on the part of the employee to take direction and guidance from a performance evaluation may or may not lead to disciplinary action.
- 17.9. An Employee's probation shall be suspended for the period of a Workers' Compensation injury. Upon returning to duty, the Employee shall have 30 days or the period of remaining probation, whichever is greater, to establish job performance toward regular appointment.
- 17.10. Probationary periods will be extended accordingly for prolonged leaves of absences

such as FMLA or approved special leaves for the duration of their probationary period.

ARTICLE 18 - PENSION AND PENSION PLAN

- 18.1. Employees shall receive pension benefits according to the provisions of The City of Hollywood Employees' Retirement Fund in Chapter 33 of the City's Ordinances which can be found in the online library here:
 https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/hollywood/latest/hollywood_fl/0-0-0-51532#JD_33.025.
- 18.2. The Summary Plan Description (SPD) of The City of Hollywood Employees' Retirement Fund can be found in the member resource section of the pension office's website here: https://hollywoodpension.com/member-resources/spd/. The SPD was created by the Board of Trustees of the City of Hollywood Employees' Retirement Fund and the City does not vouch for the accuracy or reliability of any information contained therein. In any and every case of dispute or conflict between information provided in the SPD and the City's Code of Ordinances, the City Code shall govern.
- 18.3. The City of Hollywood Employees' Retirement Fund website contains additional information on the pension plan, revisions which have been made to the plan with actuarial impact statements and staff summaries. Their website can be accessed here: https://hollywoodpension.com/

ARTICLE 19 - REST PERIODS

- 19.1. Each Employee shall be granted two 15-minute rest periods with pay on a regular basis except at times of operational problems. The first rest period will be scheduled approximately mid-point in the first one-half of the Employee's regular work shift and the second rest period will be scheduled approximately mid-point in the second one-half of the Employee's regular work-shift. There shall be no exchanges of rest periods to compensate for tardiness, extended lunches, or early departures.
- 19.2. Employees working a 10-hour day shall receive two 20-minute breaks in lieu of the 15-minute breaks. The first rest period will be scheduled approximately mid-point in the first one-half of the Employee's regular work shift and the second rest period will be scheduled approximately mid-point in the second one-half of the Employee's regular work-shift. There shall be no exchanges of rest periods to compensate for tardiness, extended lunches, or early departures.

ARTICLE 20 - SICK LEAVE

- 20.1. Employees shall accrue up to eight hours of sick leave for each month worked, prorated based upon paid hours worked each pay period. Sick leave shall be allowed to accrue without limit. Employees covered by this Agreement and serving a probationary period of employment may use accrued sick leave in the same manner as permanent employees.
- 20.2. Employees, in order to qualify for sick leave, must notify their supervisor of illness as soon as possible prior to the beginning of their shift, in accordance with respective departmental operating procedures, except in the event of an emergency. Those Employees who relieve another Employee, e.g., round-the-clock operations, must notify their supervisor prior to the beginning of the shift. Such notification shall be made each day of absence by the Employee or a responsible member of his/her household unless the Employee is hospitalized, or under doctor's care.
- 20.3. Alternative uses of sick leave, for reasons other than illness, are as follows:
 - a. If an Employee has accumulated 300 hours of sick leave as of October 1st of any Fiscal Year, he or she shall have the option of converting the next 40 hours of accrued sick leave days to vacation leave. Requests to convert the next 40 hours of sick leave to vacation leave must be made to Human Resources within the first work week following October 1st of each fiscal year. On September 30th, any unused, converted vacation leave shall revert back to sick leave.
 - b. An Employee shall have the option of converting a maximum of 40 hours of accrued sick leave days to personal leave per fiscal year, provided the Employee will have at least 96 hours of accrued sick leave after this conversion.
 - c. Sick Leave converted to Personal Leave shall be used for personal business and must be used in no less than four-hour increments, unless otherwise authorized by the Employee's supervisor.

- d. In order to qualify for Personal Leave pay, Employees must submit a request for approval to their supervisor as soon as practicable, but not less than 48 hours prior to the use of the Personal Leave. The minimum 48-hour requirement may be waived by the Employee's supervisor in the event of an emergency. The Employee must provide proof of the emergency if requested. The City may cancel the use of Personal Leave due to an emergency declared by the City Manager.
- 20.4. The options chosen by all covered Employees in 1980 shall remain in full force and effect, except as may be modified in this section. Sick leave hours accrued and unused as of October 1, 1994, shall be referred to as "Existing Hours." Employees who separate from employment with the City prior to October 1, 1994, with less than five years of credited service shall receive no payment for "Existing Hours." Employees with five or more years of credited service who separate from employment with the City for any reason whatsoever, enter the "DROP" Plan, or Retire shall receive a payment equal to the product of the Employee's final Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements and "Existing Hours."

20.5. Accrued Sick Leave Payout.

a. On or after October 1, 1994, Employees who terminate their employment with the City for any reason whatsoever shall, in addition to any payment which may be due pursuant to Section 20.4 of this Article, receive a payment equal to the product of unused sick leave accrued as of October 1, 1994 ("New Hours"), the Employee's final Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements in effect on their date of separation, and a payment percentage relating to the number of full years of credited service with the City. The table of percentages and credited service shall be:

Yrs. of Completed Service	% of Sick Leave Paid
Less than five full years of credited	20%
service	

Five or more full years of credited	40%
service, but less than 10 full years of	
credited service	
10 or more full years of credited service	70%

b. Effective March 5, 2014, except for any Bargaining Unit Employees' who had already accrued more than 1,200 hours of sick leave on March 5, 2014 (whose sick leave payouts shall remain subject to Section 20.5(a), above), the table of percentages and credited service shall be changed to the following new levels set forth below, provided that the maximum number of accrued sick leave hours that shall be eligible for payout at the Employee's final Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements using the percentages set forth below not to exceed 1,200 hours (e.g., an Employee with 20 or more years of service with 1,200 (or more) hours of sick leave shall be paid at 80% of 1,200 hours, which would be 960 hours):

Yrs. of Completed Service	% of Sick Leave Paid
Less than five full years of credited	20%
service	
Five or more full years of credited	40%
service, but less than 10 full years of	
credited service	
10 or more full years of credited	70%
service, but less than 20 full years of	
credit service	
20 or more years of credit service	80%

- 20.6. "Existing Hours" may be used only after an Employee has used all "New Hours."
 - a. The purpose of paid Sick Leave is to provide protection against the loss of wages by an Employee for the necessary absence from duty on a scheduled workday due to illness suffered by the Employee or illness in the Employee's

immediate family that necessitates the Employee's absence from work. Attendance to an immediate family member at a hospital while undergoing serious medical attention shall be included under this provision. Sick Leave pay shall not be made for illness or injury incurred as a result of outside employment, intentional self-inflicted wounds, or the continuous use of drugs or alcoholic beverages (except for approved treatment) or injuries while committing a felony. For purpose of this section, immediate family shall include spouse, children, stepchildren, mother, father, grandparent, grandchildren, domestic partner (as defined by Broward County's registration of domestic partners or any other county/state registration of domestic partners), and dependent mother-in-law or father-in-law.

- b. Employees absent from duty for a period of three or more consecutive working days due to illness or injury will be required to submit a letter from their physician prior to their return, approving resumption of duties. The letter should be sent to the attention of the Director of Human Resources. Those Employees whom a Division Head has identified as abusing sick leave may be required to submit physician statements on a more frequent basis.
- c. Any Employee who abuses sick pay benefits such as excessive usage for undocumented conditions, patterned absences, not following notice requirements or whose reasons for absence are falsified may be subject to disciplinary action. Employees having incurred more than five occurrences involving the use of Sick Leave during a Fiscal Year (October 1st to September 30th) shall be disciplined. Discipline may not be invoked if an employee can justify the absence with medical documentation. Medical documentation shall mean information provided by a certified physician providing detailed evidence of the Employee's inability to perform work during the absences and may be sent to the attention of the Director in Human Resources.
- 20.7. Upon the death of an Employee, any payments due pursuant to Section 20.04 or Section 20.5 of this Article shall be paid to the Employee's beneficiary. If a beneficiary was not designated, then the payment shall be paid to the Employee's estate.

ARTICLE 21 - VOTING TIME

- 21.1. In order to allow the employees an opportunity to vote in National, State, County or City of Hollywood elections and primaries held prior to those elections, employees covered by this Agreement who make a request to their Division Head or Supervisor in charge of the Division may be allowed one hour off without loss of pay at the start or end of their shift, provided such time off does not result in the City having to replace such employee at overtime rates. The Division Head or Supervisor in charge of the Division shall not unreasonably deny such requests, provided the conditions of this Section are met.
- 21.2. To be granted time off, an employee must sign a Voting Roster five working days before the election date and present a valid voter's registration card. The Division Head or Supervisor will post a list of personnel and the time off granted at least two working days before the election date.
- 21.3. The City shall grant such requests, provided the requirements of Section 21.2 are met, and further provided same will not substantially hinder the regular operation of the division.

ARTICLE 22 - CONTRACTING OR SUB-CONTRACTING

- 22.1. If the City is considering contracting out or sub-contracting work, which will eliminate Bargaining Unit positions, the City shall notify the Union no later than 120 days prior to making any final decision. The City shall provide the Union with all financial data relating to the proposal being considered.
- 22.2. The City shall impact bargain with the Union over the issues that will directly affect any Bargaining Unit Employee resulting from the proposed contract or sub-contract. The Union shall have the opportunity to present alternative proposals to the administration before the administration submits its recommendations to the City Commission. Thereafter, the Union shall have an additional opportunity to present its alternative proposals to the City Commission prior to the City Commission making the final decision on the matter.
- 22.3. If the decision is then made to contract out or subcontract work to a private or other governmental entity, the City shall request that the entity employ the City's displaced personnel for a period of 18 months at such wage and benefit levels as the displaced Employees received from the City on the effective date of the subcontract. However, if the sub-contractor is unwilling to hire the displaced Employees with the conditions stated above, the City shall employ the displaced Employees in another capacity at no loss of wages or benefits to the displaced Employees. For purposes of this Article, a displaced Employee is defined as any Employee who loses his/her position due to the effect of sub-contracting services otherwise provided by the City. Any Employees electing not to be employed by the sub-contractor shall have the right to exercise all rights under this Agreement, including but not limited to transfer, filling vacancies, lay off and recall. Any reduction in force will be handled insofar as practicable through attrition and/or transfer to other positions.

ARTICLE 23 - WORK UNIFORMS AND LAUNDRY

- 23.1. The Union and the City recognize the need for appropriate dress and/or uniformity of apparel among its various employees who are covered by this Agreement. It is the policy of the City of Hollywood that all work apparel and shirts provided to those AFSCME Employees required to wear uniforms will be a single solid color. Such Employees are responsible for the maintenance and care of the uniform unless otherwise provided for in the Agreement.
- 23.2. The City agrees that it will issue work uniforms to those Employees who are required to wear uniforms. Those AFSCME Employees required to wear uniforms while on duty are entitled to receive five bottoms and five tops each year to be issued October 1 of each year, and additional bottoms and tops will be reissued during the year as needed. It will be the Employees' option with the approval of the Department Director or designee to select long trousers, Bermuda style shorts, skirts or a combination thereof. Shirts shall be long or short sleeve work shirts, golf type or tee shirt. The color of the uniform shall be defined by the applicable work group. Employees terminating their employment shall be required to return such uniforms prior to receiving their final paychecks. Wearing of City supplied uniforms while engaged in non-City work or recreational activities is prohibited. Community Service Officer ("CSOs") will be issued, along with their regular uniforms, one Ballistic Vest w/cover according to the policy for Sworn Police Officers. CSOs will be required to wear the vest while in uniform, whether on duty or off duty.
- 23.3. The City recognizes that certain occupations would subject the uniforms to soiling conditions that would require commercial laundry services. To that extent, the City agrees to furnish full laundry service to only those classifications assigned to certain divisions, as listed below:
 - a. Public Works Streets Maintenance
 - i. Maintenance Person
 - ii. Equipment Operator
 - iii. Laborer

- iv. Electrician
- v. Street Light Electrician
- b. Public Works Forestry/Landscaping
 - i. Irrigation Crew
 - ii. Nursery Crew
 - iii. Tree Crew
 - iv. Beach Maintenance
 - v. Recreation Maintenance
 - vi. Right-of-Way Crew State licensed individual applying chemicals and any subordinate personnel who apply the chemicals only; standard issue uniforms without laundry service for balance of crew.
- c. Public Works Property Maintenance
 - i. Refrigeration Mechanic
 - ii. Plumber
- d. Public Works Garages: Central, Police, Fire, Sanitation
 - Chief Mechanic
 - ii. Automotive Mechanic
 - iii. Sanitation Equipment Mechanic
 - iv. Automotive Service Person
 - v. Sanitation Employees
- e. Public Utilities (Excluding clerical and office persons)
 - i. Water Plant Personnel
 - ii. Water Distribution Personnel
 - iii. Sewer Collection Personnel

- iv. Sewer Plant Personnel
- v. Underground Utilities

23.4. Civilian Police Personnel.

- a. Civilian police personnel are issued uniforms and are required to maintain and launder them; ID Technicians and CSOs will receive a uniform maintenance allowance of \$50.00 per month; maintenance shall include all necessary cleaning and/or laundering and repair of garments and/or included accessories.
- b. Replacement of issue items will be furnished by the City to Civilian Police and Fire personnel, on a turn-in, reissue basis, due to being worn-out or damaged, up to the following maximums, each year:

Quantity		Item Description
Inside Personnel	Outside Personnel	
3 each	3 each	Short sleeve shirts
3 each	3 each	Trousers
N/A	1 each	Baseball Type Cap

Any other uniform replacements will be determined on an individual-byindividual basis.

- c. Community Service officers who are assigned to road patrol will be furnished personal storage lockers.
- d. Community Service Officers will receive a cell phone stipend of \$50.00 per month. The Employee will have the option of foregoing the cell phone stipend in lieu of a city-issued cell phone.
- 23.5. Asphalt crew, Beach Maintenance Employees and Sanitation Employees in the Public Works Department and any other Employees required to wear safety shoes shall receive work shoes(boots) valued up to \$250.00 supplied by the City annually. Required work shoes shall be replaced when worn out or damaged as shall be determined in the sole discretion of the City.

- 23.6. Safety equipment will be issued at the direction of the Department Director or designee wherever needed without regard to the Agreement.
- 23.7. The City and the Union agree that in the event that new classifications are added to the pay plan or position titles are changed, those positions and any existing position titles that are determined by the City and/or Union to meet the above criteria for cleaning services covered in this Article shall be entitled to receive said cleaning services as provided herein, with agreement of the City.

ARTICLE 24 - HEALTH AND WELLNESS PLAN

24.1. The City shall provide group health coverage for regular, Full-Time Employees and dependents (dependents to include domestic partners as defined by Broward County's registration of domestic partners or any other county/state registration of domestic partners). The City offers two plan options currently named Open Access Plus plan ("OAP") and Open Access Plus In-Network plan ("OAPIN").

The City will contribute 80% of the premium for Employees electing single or dependent coverage on the OAP plan and the Employee will be responsible for contributing 20% of the premium. Thereafter, the 80% / 20% cost sharing arrangement shall continue in effect with the dollar value of the contributions being subject to premium changes in future plan years.

For the OAPIN plan, the City will continue to contribute 100% of the premium for Employees electing single coverage. For Employees adding dependents, the City will continue to contribute 90% toward the premium and the Employee will be responsible for contributing 10% of the premium. Thereafter, the 90% / 10% cost sharing arrangement shall continue in effect with the dollar value of the contributions being subject to premium changes in future plan years.

Each Employee shall have the option of undergoing an annual physical examination through the Employee's physician as provided by the City's health insurance coverage.

- 24.2. As part of the City of Hollywood Wellness Program, the City shall provide a Health Reimbursement Account ("HRA") for each Employee, with the following amounts made available to each Employee each calendar year thereafter, which will be based on the number of dependents the Employee has on the City's health plan in January: \$400 for single coverage; \$600 for single plus one dependent; and \$1000 for single plus two or more dependents.
 - a) The HRA is contingent upon the Employee completing a Biometric Screening at the City's Employee Health Center (EHC). The goal of the City of Hollywood Wellness program is to foster knowledge where employees "know their numbers," to help employees be healthier, better healthcare consumers and reward employees for being engaged in their health, active,

healthy, and completing annual preventive exams. The City encourages this by offering the HRA incentives for employees who complete their Biometric Screening at the City's EHC, along with a provider follow-up to review. This program will be voluntary and offered to all active employees enrolled in the City's medical plan. The Biometric Screening must be completed in one calendar year in order to receive the HRA incentive for the following calendar year. All new hires will have the ability to earn the incentive after they complete their initial waiting period.

- b) "Biometric Screening" is defined as an evaluation of Weight Measurement/BMI, Height, Weight, Blood Pressure, Cholesterol, and Blood Sugar/Glucose.
- c) Employees who are not covered by City health insurance shall have access only to the single coverage amount in an HRA.
- d) The annual amount shall be available on a "use it or lose it" basis to use for IRS approved unreimbursed medical expenses, with unused amounts being returned to the health fund for use in funding HRA accounts the next year. The HRAs shall be subject to all applicable requirements and limitations set forth in federal laws and regulations.
- 24.3. The City shall provide a dental insurance plan for its full-time and regularly scheduled Part-Time Employees and such dependents meeting eligibility requirements thereof at a total cost not to exceed \$19.00 per employee per month. Any premium requirements more than \$19.00 per employee per month will be borne by the participating Employee.
- 24.4. Post Employment Health/Dental Insurance.
 - a) Employees hired before July 15, 2009, who have 10 or more years of Full-Time City service in the Defined Benefit or Hybrid Plan of the City of Hollywood Employees' Retirement Fund and are age 55 or older or have 25 years of Full-Time City service regardless of age and retire upon leaving active service will have the option of continuing under the City's health insurance plan. There will be no cost to the retiree for his/her coverage. The retiree will be responsible to pay the full premium for Dependent coverage. The provisions of this section shall not apply to any Employee who retired for any reason prior

to April 1, 1988.

- b) Employees who were hired on or after July 15, 2009, but prior to April 6, 2016, who retire from active service with the City with 10 or more years of Full-Time City service in the Defined Benefit or Hybrid Plan and have reached normal retirement date as defined in Section 33.025(F) in the City's Code of Ordinances, which sets forth the retirement age depending upon years of service and date of hire, will have the option of continuing under the City's health insurance plan. They will contribute at the same rate as if they were an active Employee for single coverage and they will contribute 100% of the premium equivalent for dependents. Additionally, such Employees who continue the City's plan during retirement shall contribute 100% of the single premium equivalent upon reaching Medicare eligibility.
- c) Employees hired on or after April 6, 2016, who retire from active service with the City with 10 or more years of Full-Time City service in the Defined Benefit or Hybrid Plan, and have reached normal retirement date as defined in Section 33.025(F) in the City's Code of Ordinances, which sets forth the retirement age depending upon years of service and date of hire, shall have the option of continuing under the City's health insurance plan. However, they shall be responsible for the entire premium.
- d) Employees who are employed by the City on January 31, 2026 who elect to participate in the Defined Contribution Plan and chose to remain vested in the Defined Benefit Plan of the City of Hollywood, who retire from active service with the City with a combination of 10 years based on Full-Time City service in the Defined Benefit Plan plus Full-Time City service in either the Hybrid Plan or in the Defined Contribution Plan, and have reached Normal Retirement Date as defined in Section 33.025(F) in the City's Code of Ordinances, shall have the option of continuing under the City's health insurance plan based on their date of hire above.
- e) Employees who are employed by the City on January 31, 2026 who elect to participate in the Defined Contribution Plan and are not vested in the Defined Benefit Plan and employees hired on or after February 1, 2026 who elect to

participate in the Defined Contribution Plan, who separate from active service with the City with 10 or more years of Full-Time City service and have reached age 65 or older; age 62 or older with 25 years of Full Time City service; or 30 years of Full-Time City service, regardless of age; shall have the option of continuing under the City's health insurance plan. However, they shall be responsible for the entire premium.

- f) An employee who qualifies for continued coverage under the City health insurance plan shall have the right to continue dental coverage upon retirement provided the retiree pays the designated premium. A surviving spouse shall have the right to continue the health, and dental coverage provided the surviving spouse pays the designated premium for such coverage.
- g) Employees who retire with a duty related or non-duty related disability also have the option of continuing under the City's health insurance. Employees receiving duty disability will receive continuing health insurance for themselves and eligible dependents at no cost. Only Employees hired prior to April 6, 2016, receiving non- duty disability will receive continuing health insurance for themselves at no cost providing they have 10 years of Full-Time City service prior to retirement, and they shall be responsible for paying dependent health care. Employees who retire with a duty disability shall have the right to continue their dental coverage for themselves and eligible dependents upon retirement provided they pay the designated premium.
- 24.5. The City shall provide a term life insurance policy in the face amount of \$25,000.00 with double indemnity provision for each Employee; such term shall be for the term of active employment of the Employee and shall cease upon the Employee's separation of service for any reason. Active Employees will be covered under the basic life insurance policy and have the option to be covered under supplemental policies if chosen. Participants will be subject to the terms and conditions of the existing policy.
- 24.6. Each Employee shall also have the option of completing an annual City sponsored wellness preventative physical with the cost of the wellness preventative physical

- paid by the City. The wellness preventative physical includes a comprehensive medical evaluation, ultrasound imaging, cardio-pulmonary assessments, vision and hearing test, and extensive laboratory blood profiles.
- 24.7. The City cares about the well-being of all Employees on and off the job and provides a comprehensive Employee Assistance Program ("EAP"). An EAP offers covered Employees and family members free and convenient access to a range of confidential and professional services to help address a variety of problems that may negatively affect employee or family member's well–being. For this Agreement, coverage includes 10 free face-to-face or telephonic visits with a specialist, per person, per issue, per year including online material/tools and webinars.
- 24.8. An established health insurance committee exists to study, review and monitor alternative health insurance plans that deliver health services to employees in the most cost-effective manner. This committee may recommend alternative health insurance plan options. The committee's recommendations shall not be binding upon the City. The committee will include an equal number of represented and Non-Represented Employees. The represented members of this committee shall be appointed by the Union.
- 24.9. In recognition of the importance for mental health well-being, the City shall offer Employees two paid workdays (either 8- or 10-hour days) on a use-it-or-lose-it basis to promote well-being and wellness, following the normal and customary Sick Leave procedures. These paid workdays must be used within the fiscal year in which they were earned or will be lost and shall not count towards hours worked for overtime nor shall they be paid out upon separation of employment.

<u>ARTICLE 25 - SAFETY COMMITTEE, EQUIPMENT AND APPAREL</u>

- 25.1. The Employer and the Union recognize the importance of an adequate Safety Program. Safety committees shall be established and maintained by Departments. Oversight of such committees will be performed by the Risk Manager or his/her designee.
- 25.2. The Employer agrees to institute safety inspection programs on a semi-annual basis on all aerial vehicles. These inspections are to be made by qualified personnel. At least one inspection per year shall be performed by a certified agency. If any safety equipment or apparel is required by the City in any work area, such equipment or apparel shall be furnished by the City at no cost to the Employees. Failure of Employees to wear furnished apparel or to use said furnished equipment, or failure of an Employee to perform their job in a reasonably safe manner, may result in disciplinary action.
- 25.3. Employees who are required to wear eye protection and wear prescription glasses will be reimbursed the cost differences not to exceed \$50.00 per year, between regular prescription glasses and industrial safety glasses. Prior to utilization, Employees shall make a request in writing and receive written approval from their Department or Division Head. Proof of purchase and payment shall be submitted through channels.
- 25.4. In the event glasses are broken during employment as a result of being struck by an object as outlined in Section 25.3 of this Article, the City shall pay the full reasonable replacement cost unless employee's carelessness caused the loss.
- 25.5. If an Employee believes he is being required to work under unsafe conditions, he shall notify in writing his immediate supervisor who will investigate the condition within one working day and take corrective action, if warranted. The supervisor will respond in writing to the Employee and copy the Risk Manager within two working days. No Employee shall be disciplined for refusing to work under unsafe conditions.
- 25.6. The City shall provide waterproof sunscreen lotions with an SPF of 40 or greater to all outdoor City Employees. The City will provide an allowance of \$75 annually to full-time Beach Safety personnel for the acquisition of sunglasses, which will be paid in

- the last full pay period in March. The City will also provide a changing facility for Beach Safety personnel and protective covers/awnings for the lifeguard chairs.
- 25.7. The City has established and implemented Citywide lightning policy and procedure established through the consultation and advice of an outside contractor to ensure the safety and security of our workforce and its residents.
- 25.8. The City shall provide adequate hydration products to all Employees whose work is done primarily outdoors. These beverages shall be made available anytime the temperature reaches or exceeds 85 degrees.
- 25.9. The City will provide vaccines as recommended by the Centers for Disease Control at the request of any Bargaining Unit Employee whose position puts him/her at risk, or any member who in the course and scope of his/her duties comes in contact with any type of substance that could place the Employee at risk.

ARTICLE 26 - WORK RULES

- 26.1. All rules and regulations in effect on the effective date of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement unless modified in accordance with the provisions of this Article.
- 26.2. The City will issue a copy of the Rules and Regulations to each new Employee, upon hire, who is subject to those Rules and Regulations. Each Employee will provide written acknowledgment of his/her receipt of the Rules and Regulations and will be held accountable for compliance therewith.
- 26.3. If the City wants to institute a new work rule or modify an existing work rule ("Proposed Rule"), the City may do so pursuant to the following procedure:
 - a. The City shall provide a copy of the Proposed Rule to the Union.
 - b. The Union may request, within 10 working days of receipt, to negotiate over the Proposed Rule if the Union claims that the Proposed Rule affects wages, hours of work and other terms and conditions of employment or has the practical consequence of violating this Agreement.
 - c. If no request for negotiation is made within 10 working days from the time the Union receives the Proposed Rule, the Proposed Rule may be implemented by the City.
 - d. If a request to negotiate is timely received with respect to a Proposed Rule, the City and the Union shall meet in an attempt to mutually agree upon the Proposed Rule.
 - e. If the parties agree on the Proposed Rule, the rule will be implemented as agreed upon.
 - f. If the City and the Union fail to agree on a Proposed Rule, and providing the Proposed Rule meets the standards in paragraph b, the dispute shall go to arbitration. The arbitration shall be expedited, and the arbitrator shall be requested and mutually agreed to, by both parties, to make a prompt award without a written opinion. If the arbitrator finds that the Proposed Rule violates the specific written terms of this Agreement or is unreasonable, then

the Proposed Rule shall not be implemented. The Proposed Rule shall not be implemented until after the arbitrator's award is received and then only if the City prevails.

- 26.4. There shall be a single set of Rules and Regulations applicable to all Employees of the City. This shall not prohibit any department from adopting written operational procedures specific to the needs of that department. Written operational procedures established by any Department shall be distributed to all Employees in that department. Each Employee will be provided with the operational procedures and acknowledge in writing his/her receipt of such written operational procedures. Copies of departmental written operational procedures shall be provided to the Union. In the event of a conflict between written operational procedures and the single set of Rules and Regulations, the single set of Rules and Regulations will control.
- 26.5. The Rules and Regulations have been updated to correspond with the effective date of this agreement to reflect current operational and administrative standards. The City reserves the right to revise and amend its Rules and Regulations to align with newly adopted or updated City policies and procedures. As such changes occur, the Rules and Regulations will be reviewed and revised accordingly to ensure consistency and compliance.

ARTICLE 27 - UNION BULLETIN BOARDS

- 27.1. The Employer will make available to the Union a minimum of 40 Bulletin Boards (approximately 2' x 3') to be used for the posting of Union Notices and other Union information. The Union and Management will agree upon the location of the boards. However, the bulletin boards will not be placed in areas readily accessible to the public.
- 27.2. Notices will be posted only with the prior approval of the President of Local 2432 or designee.

ARTICLE 28 - LAY-OFF AND RECALL

- 28.1. Seniority lists shall be established for each class title affected by a lay-off or abolishment of positions. All regular Employees occupying positions in the affected class title shall be placed on a seniority list. In the event it is necessary to reduce the workforce, including abolishment of positions, Employees shall be laid off in inverse order of seniority, i.e., junior Employees first.
- 28.2. An Employee who is laid off or whose job is abolished pursuant to Section 28.1 shall, based on Citywide seniority, have the option of bumping either laterally or downward to a class title for which the Employee is reasonably qualified and/or has the ability to be trained to perform the essential tasks of the job within 90 days of appointment. In the alternative, Employees may, at the non-arbitrary discretion of the City Manager, be placed into a higher paid class title if qualified. Qualification criteria shall be based upon the approved position description.
- 28.3. In the event of a lay-off, the City will make every effort to give as much notice as possible. In no event will Employees receive less than a three-week notice of lay-off, or in lieu of notice, three weeks' pay at the Employee's regular rate of pay in addition to all paid accrued leaves. The Union shall be furnished copies of all lay-off notices three days prior to notices being furnished to the affected Employees.
- 28.4. Employees laid off, demoted or transferred due to the exercise of their bumping rights or due to being bumped or whose positions are abolished, shall be placed on recall lists, and recalled in order of seniority. Re-appointment shall be to any vacancies which exist, first, in the class title from which the Employee was laid off, and second, in any position for which the Employee is reasonably qualified and possesses Citywide seniority. Laid-off Employees shall have the first right to recall for vacancies in the class title from which they were laid-off.
- 28.5. Any Employee whose name is listed on a recall list who refuses appointment to a position with a lower pay grade will have up to two opportunities to be rehired to a class title with a lower pay grade for a position for which the Employee is reasonably qualified. If there is more than one position available, the Employee shall be given the option of choosing the one equal to or closest to his/her former pay grade. If both opportunities are declined, the Employee shall have no further right to recall to a class

- title with a lower pay grade.
- 28.6. Employees refusing re-employment in a class title with an equal or higher pay grade shall have no further rights to recall for that class title.
- 28.7. Employees refusing recall to their originally held class title and pay grade lose all recall rights, and if at the time of this recall they are employed in a lower classification, the Employee's pay shall be lowered to the pay grade level applicable to the Employee's years of service for that lower paid classtitle.
- 28.8. If the recalled Employee fails to respond in writing within 14 calendar days of the receipt of the notice of recall letter, then he/she shall be deemed to have refused the position offered.
- 28.9. In the event an Employee is not rehired or recalled within 24 months following the date of his/her layoff, the City's obligation to recall that Employee shall cease, and his/her name shall be removed from the recall list.
- 28.10. The City will provide the Union with an entire City recall list, bi-annually. The list will include dates of hire, dates of lay-off, classification(s) the laid off Employee previously held and the name of the Department, Division or Office in which the Employee worked on the date of the lay-off.
- 28.11. Those Employees who are afforded Veteran's Preference rights pursuant to Section 295.07 (1) (a–d), Florida Statutes ("Qualified Employees"), shall have their seniority dates adjusted solely for retention/layoff purposes as set forth in this Article in the following manner:
 - a. Three months of City service time shall be added to the Citywide seniority of Qualified Employees who have been employed by the City of Hollywood for five years or less.
 - b. Six months of City service time shall be added to the Citywide seniority of Qualified Employees who have been employed by the City of Hollywood for more than five years.

ARTICLE 29 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE AND ARBITRATION

29.1. Grievances Generally.

- a. The City and the Union have negotiated a grievance procedure to be used for the settlement of disputes involving the interpretation or application of the Agreement. Such grievance procedure shall have as its terminal step a final and binding disposition by an impartial neutral, mutually selected by the parties. However, an arbitrator or other neutral shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, modify, or alter the terms of the Agreement.
- b. The Union may exercise its right not to process a grievance challenging disciplinary action issued to a bargaining unit member. In such cases, the Union will notify the member and the City and upon such notification, the City shall thereafter conduct all official communication directly with the aggrieved employee(s), with a copy to the Union including dates of any hearings. Additionally, except for grievances filed by individual employees challenging disciplinary action involving a suspension or greater, the Union shall have the exclusive authority to demand arbitration and advance grievances forward to arbitration concerning issues of contract interpretation. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the Union from participating at any grievance step when it deems it necessary to protect the integrity of this Agreement. Any grievance defined as a claim reasonably and suitably founded on a violation of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall systematically follow the steps outlined below as the Grievance Procedure. Any grievance filed shall refer to the Article(s) of this Agreement alleged to have been violated, shall set forth the facts pertaining to the alleged violation or violations and shall include the corrective action or actions requested by the aggrieved party. A grievance must be communicated in writing to the employer by the Union within fourteen (14) calendar days from the events giving rise to the grievance, or fourteen (14) days from the date a grievance might reasonably be known to exist, otherwise it is deemed to be waived.
- Step 1: The written grievance shall be presented to the Department Director or designee. The grievance will be dated and signed by the Union

representative, or the aggrieved Employee if the Union is not processing the grievance. The Department Director or designee shall acknowledge receipt of the grievance by stamping it with the date and time, with a copy to the Union. The Department Director shall, within seven (7) calendar days, conduct a meeting with the aggrieved Employee(s) and/or the Union representative. The Department Director shall provide the Union with a written decision concerning the grievance, with a copy sent to the aggrieved Employee(s), (or to the aggrieved employee if the Union is not processing the grievance pursuant to Section 29.1(b)), within seven (7) calendar days following the meeting date. The parties may agree to mutually skip Step 1 and move straight to Step 2.

- Step 2: If the Union (or the aggrieved Employee if the Union is not processing the grievance pursuant to Section 29.1(b)) is not satisfied with the decision rendered at Step 1, the Union (or the aggrieved Employee if the Union is not processing the grievance) may, within seven (7) calendar days from the written decision rendered at Step 1, forward the written grievance to the office of the City Manager (stamped in with date and time). The City Manager or designee shall meet with the aggrieved Employee(s) and/or their Union representative(s) within seven (7) calendar days after receipt of the grievance. The City Manager or designee shall furnish a copy of their decision, in writing, to the Union (or the aggrieved Employee if the Union is not processing the grievance), within seven (7) calendar days after the meeting.
- Step 3: If the Union (or the aggrieved Employee if the Union is not processing the grievance pursuant to Section 29.1(b)) challenging a disciplinary action involving a suspension or greater is not satisfied with the decision rendered at Step 2, the Union (or the aggrieved Employee if the Union is not processing the disciplinary grievance) may, within fourteen (14) calendar days from receipt of the City Manager's decision, submit the grievance to arbitration, by requesting a list of arbitrators from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (F.M.C.S.) or the American Arbitration Association (AAA), the choice of agency within the discretion of the Union. The request shall seek a panel of 11 names, and either party may request a second panel of names.

 The parties shall strike names alternatively from the list of names to select the neutral arbitrator. The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on all parties.

29.2. Rules for Grievances and Arbitration processing:

- a. The grievance shall be submitted on an Official Grievance form. Attachments may be added, if needed. The City and the Union (or the aggrieved Employee if the Union is not representing the Employee pursuant to Section 29.1(b)), shall mutually agree in writing as to the statement of the grievance to be arbitrated before the arbitration hearing, and the arbitrator shall confine his/her decision to the grievance submitted. In the event the parties are unable to agree on the statement of the grievance to be submitted to the arbitrator, then the arbitrator shall confine their consideration and determination to the written statement of the grievance at Step 1 and any defenses raised by the City.
- b. Time limits at any step in the grievance process may be extended only by mutual written consent of the parties involved at that step.
- c. A grievance not advanced to the higher step by the Union, or an individual employee if proceeding without assistance from the Union, within the time frames provided shall be deemed permanently withdrawn as having been settled based on the decision most recently given. Failure on the part of the employer or his/her designee to answer or meet within the time limits provided at Step 1 or 2 will cause the grievance to be considered resolved in favor of the grievant or the Union and all parties will abide by the "corrective action or actions requested" on the grievance form or attachments.
- d. Notice that a grievance which is advanced to the next step in the process shall be delivered to the Human Resources Office. Hand deliveries will be documented by a date-stamped photocopy or by a dated signature of the recipient. Grievances delivered via certified mail shall be considered properly advanced as of their postmark but shall not be considered to have been received by the next party until the actual date of delivery or date of refusal of delivery. Grievances sent via electronic mail shall be considered properly

- advanced when date stamped but shall not be considered received until opened by the Union, as indicated by the returned receipt. The clock will start the day after delivery or returned receipt.
- e. On-duty personnel called by the Union, (or the aggrieved Employee if the Union is not processing the grievance), as a witness shall remain in pay status only during their normal duty hours while appearing at the hearing. Such personnel shall respond to subpoena on as-needed basis to minimize waiting time so as not to disrupt the operations of their department. Hearings shall be held in hearing rooms provided by the City, in City facilities at no charge to the Union.
- f. The parties agree that in accordance with current practice, both the City and the Union (or the aggrieved Employee if the Union is not processing the grievance pursuant to Section 29.1(b)), will have the option of electronically recording (through audio or video tape) all steps of the grievance procedure outlined in Section 29.2, including the arbitration hearings. Any party desiring a transcript shall bear the cost of such transcript, unless both parties mutually agree to share said cost.
- g. The arbitrator and court reporter bills shall be paid by the party that does not prevail. Pursuant to Section 29.1(b), an individual employee filing for arbitration without union endorsement will be responsible for both the arbitrator court reporter's bills, should they not prevail. In the event an individual employee advances a grievance forward to arbitration without Union assistance pursuant to 29.1(b), both the City and the individual employee shall be required, at least thirty (30) days in advance of the arbitration hearing, to provide the arbitrator with a refundable good faith deposit in an amount equal to at least fifty percent (50%) of their share of the anticipated arbitration and court reporter costs.
- h. All Employees covered by this Agreement shall have no other right to utilize any appeal process (specifically the Civil Service Procedure) other than the grievance procedure described herein.
- i. The City shall furnish the Union with copies of grievances filed by individual employees as soon as practicable but in no event less than two days prior to the initial meeting of the grievance procedure.

j. Grievances shall be settled as expeditiously as possible.

ARTICLE 30 - FMLA / SPECIAL LEAVE / LEAVE OF ABSENCE

30.1. Family and Medical Leave Act ("FMLA") of 1993:

a. An Employee who has worked with the City at least 12 months and who has worked at least 1,250 hours in the last 12 months prior to the beginning date of the leave may be entitled to 12 work weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave during a 12 month period for specified family and medical reasons, as defined and controlled by the FMLA of 1993 and U.S. Department of Labor FMLA Regulations, as may be amended from time to time.

b. Eligible Reasons for FMLA Leave

- i. birth and care of a newborn child of the Employee;
- ii. placement with the Employee of a child for adoption or foster care;
- iii. care for an Employee's spouse (or registered domestic partner as defined by Broward County's registration of domestic partners or any other county/state registration of domestic partners), parent, or child with a serious health condition (as defined by the FMLA);
- iv. serious health condition that makes the Employee unable to perform the functions of the Employee's job;
- v. exigency related to active-duty military service by the Employee's immediate family member;
- vi. up to 26 weeks of leave may be taken to care for a spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin who is a member of the Armed Forces and who is undergoing medical treatment or who is medically unfit to perform military duties due to an injury or illness incurred while on active duty.
- c. Procedure: An Employee requesting FMLA is required to utilize all accrued leave benefits before becoming eligible for unpaid leave. Unless otherwise designated in advance by the Employee, accrued leave shall be used/deducted in the following order: sick, vacation, comp time, holiday, and blood time. Use of accrued leave will be counted as part of the family

leave time entitlement. An Employee is not entitled to accrue leave during any period of unpaid leave.

Employees requiring the use of FMLA Leave must submit a FMLA application to their Division Head no later than 30 days prior to the need for such leave unless it is an unforeseeable emergency. The City may automatically designate FMLA when an absence meets FMLA qualifications.

- i. Leave may be requested on a continuous basis, intermittent basis or on a reduced work week schedule, if medically necessary. The Employee must provide medical certification within 15 days of the date requested. The Employee must attempt to schedule their intermittent or reduced leave so as not to disrupt the organization's operations. The Employee may be required to transfer temporarily to a position with equal pay and benefits that better accommodates recurring periods of leave or a reduced work schedule.
- ii. Upon returning from FMLA, the Employee is entitled to return to the same position held when the leave began or to a similar position with equivalent benefits and pay, unless the position would have been eliminated had the Employee not been on leave. In such circumstances, the employee may apply for any other vacant position for which they are qualified. Should the leave continue beyond the 12-work week period, reinstatement rights are at the discretion of the City.
- iii. An Employee granted FMLA will continue to be covered under the City's insurance plans under the same conditions and coverage as would have been provided if the Employee had been actively employed during the leave period. However, if any part of the leave is unpaid, the Employee must make payment arrangements for the benefit contributions that are normally deducted from their paycheck.
- iv. An Employee granted FMLA will continue to be covered under the

City's insurance plans under the same conditions and coverage as would have been provided if the Employee had been actively employed during the leave period. However, if any part of the leave is unpaid, the Employee must make payment arrangements for the benefit contributions that are normally deducted from their paycheck.

- v. An Employee who is absent from work for three days or more, due to personal illness/injury, must provide Human Resources with a fitness-for-duty certification signed by their physician certifying their fitness to return to work. If restrictions are listed, reinstatement will be at the discretion of the City.
- vi. An Employee who fails to return to work on the date specified on the leave request form without receiving an extension in advance is subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination. Employees who do not return from FMLA leave must reimburse the City for the value of their health insurance premium payments made on their behalf during the duration of the leave unless the Employee is physically unable to return to work.

30.2. Special Leave:

- a. An Employee who incurs a temporary medically disabling condition, not attributable to work, may upon written request be granted a Special Leave. An Employee may also request special leave to care for any member of their immediate family who incurs a temporary medical disabling condition. The initial period for said Special Leave shall not exceed three months. Upon further written request, the Division Head may extend such leave up to an additional nine months. The total combined Special Leave shall not exceed 12 months. Upon return, the Employee shall present a letter from his/her physician stating that the Employee is fit to return to full, unrestricted duty.
- b. This leave is available for an FMLA qualifying event, once the Employee has used all available FMLA Leave, if applicable, as provided above. Once

- FMLA leave is exhausted, Special Leave may be approved for up to nine months. The total of FMLA Leave and Special Leave shall not exceed 12 months.
- c. An Employee requesting Special Leave is required to utilize all accrued leave benefits before becoming eligible for unpaid leave. Employees will not receive holiday pay, or earn any accrued leave or pension benefits, or be entitled to any other benefits of employment other than health and life insurance (at the Employee's expense as stated in Section 30.1(c)(iii), above) while on any unpaid leave.
- d. An Employee who incurs such a temporary medically disabling condition during a probationary period may, at the discretion of the Division Head and City Manager, be granted a Special Leave as indicated above. If Special Leave is granted, the Employee's probationary period shall be suspended at that point. Upon the Employee's return to work, the probationary period shall be resumed so that the total number of months spent on special leave shall be spent in a probationary status and a full probationary period shall be served.

30.3. Leave of Absence:

- a. Upon written request, a leave of absence for a period not to exceed 30 calendar days may be granted to an Employee for any reasonable purpose by the Division Head so long as it does not hamper the efficient operation of the City and/or Department.
- b. Such leaves may be renewed or extended for a period up to 60 calendar days, if requested in writing and approved by the City Manager or designee. The denial of a leave of absence under this section shall not be grievable. In certain circumstances, and at the sole discretion of the City Manager or designee, an Employee may be allowed to use accrued paid leave while on a leave of absence.
- 30.4. No Employee who is granted FMLA, Special Leave, or an Unpaid Leave of Absence may engage in work for profit during said leave without the express permission of the City Manager.

ARTICLE 31 - HOLIDAYS

31.1. The following legal holidays will be observed:

New Year's Day

Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday

George Washington's Birthday (President's Day)

Memorial Day

Juneteenth

Fourth of July (Independence Day)

Labor Day

Veteran's Day

Thanksgiving Day

Day after Thanksgiving

Christmas Eve

Christmas Day

New Year's Eve

31.2. If any of the above holidays falls on a Friday, Saturday, or Monday, and the Friday, Saturday or Monday is an Employee's normal day off, the Employee will receive a floating holiday for each holiday which falls on a Friday, Saturday, or Monday for which the Employee is off, which, shall not be taken more than one week prior to the actual holiday and must be utilized within 365 calendar days following the day it is accrued, or the holiday will be lost. The floating holiday shall be taken at the discretion of the Employee with the consent of the Employee's supervisor. Floating Holidays are not paid out upon separation of employment. Employees who are scheduled to work on a holiday may request to be paid for the holiday in lieu of receiving a floating holiday. Employees choosing to be paid for such holiday are required to request to be paid for the holiday in the pay period in which the holiday is earned. These paid floating holidays are considered "cash-outs" and are not to be considered time worked or paid holidays for purposes of calculating overtime. Employees shall receive pay for paid holidays at the Employee's total enhanced hourly rate and these paid holidays are not eligible to be paid at time and one-half.

- 31.3. Without regard to whether an Employee is regularly scheduled to work four or five consecutive shifts in a workweek, if any of the above holidays fall on a Saturday, then such holidays shall be observed on the preceding Friday, and any holidays that fall on a Sunday shall be observed on the following Monday. Notwithstanding any of the preceding language, to the extent that the normal workweek schedule for Employees is not changed from schedules comprised of five consecutive eight hour shifts to schedules comprised of four consecutive 10 hour shifts, that the preceding language shall have no impact nor effects whatsoever upon the expectation of such Employees with regard to their accrual, compensation for, and receipt of holiday pay, whether pursuant to any contractual rights, existing policies, prevailing rights, and/or past practices, that existed or were followed prior to the adoption and implementation of the immediately preceding language, and which shall therefore, remain in full force and effect for such Employees.
- 31.4. All Employees whose work week is comprised of four 10-hour shifts, and who work on the Holiday, shall receive 10 hours of Holiday pay. Employees working on a regular 10-hour work schedule, who are scheduled to work on a holiday, and are unable to work due to illness, will receive 10 hours pay for that date, none of which is chargeable to sick leave.
- 31.5. Non-sworn Police Department Employees and Employees of Beach Safety who have their holidays added to their vacation will continue this practice and in addition, will receive two floating holidays per calendar year. Said holidays must be requested 10 working days in advance of the date requested. In the event of coverage and scheduling conflicts, Management reserves the right to deny the request for a particular day. In any event, subject personnel will receive two floating holidays off each year of the Agreement. The only Employees eligible for these two floating holidays shall be Employees in the job classifications of Teletype Operator, Teletype Supervisor, Community Service Officer, Crime Scene Technician (with the exception of photo imaging and fingerprints), Store Keeper, Ocean Lifeguard, Marine Safety Officer, and Marine Safety Lieutenant, who work on observed holidays and in lieu of holiday pay have their holiday hours added to their vacation. These Employees have the ability to earn additional

floating holidays per Section 31.2 of this Article if any of the above holidays falls on a Friday, Saturday or Monday and the Friday, Saturday, or Monday is the Employee 's normal day off. The Police Chief and Fire Chief, in their sole discretion, shall determine which job classifications are required to work on observed holidays and will be therefore eligible for the two floating holidays.

- 31.6. In accordance with standing procedure, an Employee must be in pay status immediately preceding and immediately following the holiday to be eligible to be paid for the holiday unless an Employee's first day or last day of employment occurs on a holiday, in which case, the Employee will be paid for the holiday.
- 31.7. The maximum accrual and banking of holidays for Beach Safety Employees is limited to the greater of the number of hours that each Beach Safety Employee had in their holiday bank on June 11, 2004, or 250 hours. Beach Safety Employees will forfeit any banked or accrued hours earned over their maximum accrual if not used within 15 months from the last day of the year in which the hours were earned. Upon separation from the City, the banked or accrued hours which are not greater than the maximum shall be paid as compensation.

ARTICLE 32 - VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT

- 32.1. Whenever an Employee covered by this Agreement is authorized by his/her Department/Division Head to use his/her own vehicle in the performance of his/her official City duties, the Employee will be compensated at the rate authorized by State Statute (F.S. 112.061) or IRS code, whichever is greater.
- 32.2. An Employee shall not be required to use his/her own vehicle without his/her consent in the performance of his/her official City duties.
- 32.3. Whenever an Employee receives written authorization from his/her Department/Division Head to use his/her own vehicle in the performance of official City duties, the Employee's vehicle shall be protected by the City's self-insurance plan.
- 32.4. An Employee who is requested to use his/her own vehicle to perform official City business as authorized by his/her Department/Division Head shall be required to complete an official car expense report as prepared by the City. Such report shall include an accounting of all expenses for which reimbursement is requested.
- 32.5. All Employees who drive City vehicles or their own vehicles while conducting City business are subject to the Human Resource Policy HR-012 Drug Free Workplace, and HR-038 City Vehicle Drivers and, as such, the City and the Union support the City's policy for testing those individuals who are mandated to be tested by the Federal Law and under the guidelines of the City's Policies..
- 32.6. Employees who are scheduled "on-call" will be provided a City take home vehicle throughout their "on-call" assignment.

ARTICLE 33 - BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

In the event of death in the immediate family, an Employee shall be granted 40 hours of leave with pay. Said leave is not to be charged to accrued sick leave, vacation leave or any other earned leave, but shall be in addition thereto. The City reserves the right to request proof of death. For purposes of Bereavement Leave, immediate family is exclusively defined as current spouse, children, foster child or child obtained through legal guardianship, mother, father, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brotherin-law, sister-in-law, grandparents, grandparents-in-law, grandchildren, stepchildren, step-mother, step-father and domestic partners as defined by Broward County's registration of domestic partners or any other county/state registration of domestic partners. The children, foster children or children obtained through legal guardianship, mother, father, brother, sister, grandparents, and grandchildren, stepchildren, stepmother, stepfather of domestic partners are included in the definition of immediate family members. Upon notice of the death, 40 hours of leave shall be granted. Consideration may be given for bereavement leave for other relatives related by blood, where the relative at the time of death had legal residence in the Employee's household or for persons who at any time prior to their death were legal dependents of the Employee. Proof of relationship and/or legal dependency may be required.

ARTICLE 34 - JURY DUTY AND SUBPOENAS

- 34.1. A Full-Time Employee, or a Part-Time Employee per Section 50.2, lawfully summoned for Jury Duty shall present the summons to the Employee's supervisor on the first workday following receipt of same. The supervisor shall note the dates of reporting and shall schedule the Employee for official jury leave for the period concerned.
- 34.2. Upon return to work, the Employee shall provide to the Employee's supervisor a document from the Court Clerk showing that the Employee was in attendance at jury duty.
- 34.3. The Employee shall be paid the Employee's Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements for each day served on Jury Duty, as for a normally scheduled workday. If the Employee is excused in advance by the Court, for any full day during the service period, the Employee shall report for the Employee's normal workday to perform the Employee's regular and usual duties. The Employee shall sign over to the City all fees received from the Court for jury service less any amounts paid as mileage or meal allowances. The City's payment for Jury Duty service shall not exceed 15 days in any 12-month period, except that upon review by the City Manager, this may be extended.
- 34.4. The City reserves the right to request from the proper authorities that the Employee be excused from Jury Duty, when in the judgment of the City, the Employee's services are necessary to the City.
- 34.5. The provisions of this Article are not applicable to an Employee who without being summoned, volunteers for Jury Duty.
- 34.6. The provisions of this Article shall apply when an Employee who is scheduled to work is subpoenaed to appear as a witness in any judicial/administrative forum arising from the Employee's employment with the City. In these circumstances, if an Employee is off-duty and subpoenaed to appear as a witness for the City, the call-out rate shall apply.

<u>ARTICLE 35 – LONGEVITY COMPENSATION</u>

35.1. Effective in the first full pay period after October 1, 2025, all Full-Time Bargaining Unit Employees with cumulative full-time City service shall prospectively receive additional compensation, which will be applied to the Employee's base pay rate, as follows:

Cumulative Years of Service	Additional Compensation
1 Year	2.0%
3 Years	3.0%
5 Years	2.0%
7 Years	3.0%
10 Years	3.0%
12 Years	3.0%
15 Years	4.0%

35.2. Effective in the first full pay period after October 1, 2025, all regularly scheduled Part-Time Bargaining Unit Employees with continuous City part-time service shall prospectively receive additional compensation, which will be applied to the Employee's base pay rate, as follows:

Continuous Years of Service	Additional Compensation
1 Years	2.0%
3 Years	3.0%
5 Years	2.0%
7 Years	3.0%
10 Years	3.0%
12 Years	3.0%
15 Years	4.0%

ARTICLE 36 - VACATIONS

36.1. All regular Full-Time Employees shall accrue paid vacation leave, pro-rated based upon paid hours worked each pay period following their employment anniversary date as set forth below:

Continuous Years of Service	Earned Annual Leave (vacations)
Up to 7 years	80 hours/year
More than 7 but less than 10	112 hours/year
completed years	
More than 10 but less than 15	144 hours/year
completed years	
More than 15 but less than 20	160 hours/year
completed years	
20 years and over	200 hours/year

- 36.2. Whether Employees work a five-day eight-hour per day work week, or a four-day 10-hour per day work week, vacations will be based on 40 hours pay for each full vacation week.
- 36.3. Vacations shall be chosen by Citywide seniority by job classification within a Division, unless a particular work group within a Division unanimously agrees to continue the existing vacation selection method. Holidays occurring within a vacation may be added to the vacation.
- 36.4. Employees who utilize their vacation other than in one consecutive period may exercise their seniority for the first vacation period and shall not select the second vacation period until all other Employees in their group have selected a primary Vacation.
- 36.5. Vacations shall be scheduled by the calendar year and Employees must select vacation periods by March 1, or sooner, each year. After completion of the first

full year of service, vacation time accrued as of September 30 of each year is "use it or lose it" and is to be utilized during the following fifteen (15) months or it will be lost. Cash payments in lieu of unused vacation shall be made only on termination of employment.

- 36.6. Vacation pay shall be computed by using the Employee's Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements as of the first day of vacation. Employees may request their vacation pay in advance of any scheduled vacation leave by submitting a written request to their Division Head four weeks in advance of the day they want the vacation pay. Advance vacation pay will only be distributed on regular paydays. Advance vacation pay must be requested for entire pay periods.
- 36.7 Not later than August 1st of each calendar year, an employee may elect to redeem up to a maximum of 40 hours of the unused annual (vacation) leave. Payment for such redemption to be made by or before September 10th following the redemption request.
- 36.8 The employees who have legacy vacation hours on the books which were inadvertently allowed to be rolled over in previous years will be allowed to use those hours throughout the duration of this Agreement. Hours not utilized prior to September 30, 2028, will be lost. These legacy hours are not eligible to be paid out upon separation of employment if separation occurs prior to September 30, 2028.

ARTICLE 37 - DISCIPLINARY ACTION

37.1. It is agreed that the most effective means of maintaining discipline is through the promotion of cooperation and sustained good working relationships. In those cases where specific corrective action becomes necessary, the disciplinary measures taken shall be for just cause and shall be progressive. However, in specific instances where warranted, severe disciplinary measures, up to and including termination, may be imposed without utilization of progressive procedures. Disciplinary action shall be administered in a manner that is fair and consistent.

37.2. Progressive Discipline.

- a. When an employee is called in by their supervisor for the purpose of an oral counseling or warning, the employee shall not be entitled to have a Union representative present.
- b. When an Employee is called in by their supervisor or higher authority to receive a written warning, written reprimand, or other notice of discipline to be administered, they shall be entitled to have Union representative present at their request. Written reprimands and lesser disciplinary actions (including oral counseling or warnings) are not subject to the arbitration procedures.
- c. When the Union representative responds pursuant to an Employee's request under (a) above, the Union representative shall only advise the Employee of their rights under the Contract. The Union representative shall not interfere in the conduct of the meeting, nor shall they question the supervisor or other higher management authority.
- d. While the parties understand and agreethat a performance evaluation is not a form of disciplinary action and is not subject to the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure provided under Article 29 (except as provided in Section 17.7), they realize that at times the Employee will be counseled, warned or reprimanded in writing to improve deficient job performance. To this end, the following procedure will apply: When the supervisor calls the Employee in for a meeting to review a performance evaluation that is less than satisfactory in whole or in part, the supervise shall advise the Employee of the purpose of the meeting, and the Employee shall then be entitled, upon request, to have a Union representative present. However, the Union representative shall

not interfere in the conduct of the meeting, nor shall they question the supervisor.

- e. Employees shall be entitled to receive written notice of the City's intent to issue disciplinary action along with notice of the Employee's right to attend a voluntary pre-determination hearing prior to being issued any disciplinary action involving a suspension, demotion or termination, by no later than 1:00 pm prior to the scheduled pre-determination hearing so the Employee may arrange for union and/or legal representation, at their option. If an attorney or union representative will be representing the Employee at the pre-determination hearing, the hearing will be held within a reasonable period from receipt of the notice.
- f. The City agrees to furnish the Union with a copy of any written disciplinary action and/or notice of proposed disciplinary action issued to any Employee in the Bargaining Unit.
- 37.3. Employees shall receive copies of all disciplinary action at the same time as the documents are filed in the Employee's personnel folder.
- 37.4. Discipline and/or counseling will be carried out in a manner that does not embarrass or humiliate the employee. and shall be imposed by the City no later than 90-days from the time the City, including immediate supervisors and any other supervisors and any other superiors in the employee's chain of command outside of the Bargaining Unit, knew or should have known of the violation. The union shall not unreasonably withhold the granting of a 30-day extension to impose discipline should the City need additional time to complete any and/or all investigation of the alleged violation(s).
- 37.5. In disciplinary action appeals from discharge, suspension or demotion, if the action is reversed through an arbitration, then, If an imposed disciplinary action involving a suspension, demotion or termination is fully reversed through an arbitrator's award, then all reference to the allegations, including but not limited to those contained in the Employee's personnel file, shall be boldly marked with the word "Rescinded" across the body of the documents related to the disciplinary action, with a copy of the arbitrator's award placed on top of said documents for reference.
- 37.6. If an Employee does not repeat the offense leading to a written reprimand, for a period of 18 months from the date of the written reprimand, then that written reprimand will

not be used as the basis for a future disciplinary action unless a second offense occurs within the 18-month period.

- 37.7. Whenever the imposed discipline is in the form of a suspension without pay, the Employee may request City Manager approval to forfeit accrued vacation, blood, compensatory or holiday leave, if any, equal to the suspension, in lieu of the loss of pay If the Employee elects this option, such election shall be conditioned upon City Manager approval and the Employee's full waiver of any and all rights to appeal the suspension pursuant to the Grievance and Arbitration Procedure set forth in Article 29.
- 37.8. Employee suspensions will not be served until at least fourteen (14) calendar days after the final date of notification. If the Employee chooses to appeal a suspension through Article 29, the suspension will be held in abeyance until the appropriate appeal process has been concluded.

ARTICLE 38 - FOOD AND SUPPLIES

- 38.1. Emergencies. In the event of a hurricane or other unusual emergency condition as determined by the City Manager or designee, the City will provide food/sandwiches, beverages, and necessary supplies, unless prevented from doing so due to emergency conditions, to any member covered by this Agreement who:
 - a. is held over more than three hours beyond his/her regularly scheduled shift without a break, and is not permitted to leave the work site to obtain food; or
 - b. is called back after having completed his/her normal workday, with less than three hours intervening. Food provisions for utility personnel shall be provided separately from food supplies for other Employees.
- 38.2. Holdovers. In other circumstances, Employees working in the Public Utilities and/or Public Works departments that are held over in an overtime capacity and not given the option to eat at home shall be compensated as follows:
 - a. an Employee required to holdover six hours or more but less than eight hours shall receive \$10.00 for a meal and 20 minutes on the clock for a meal break;
 - an Employee required to holdover eight hours or more shall receive \$16.00 for meals and 40 minutes on the clock for meal breaks.
- 38.3. In all cases, one person will pick up food for all Employees held over, except that at the sole discretion of the Supervisor, others may be allowed to leave the plant site for a specified period.

ARTICLE 39 - SERVICES TO THE UNION

- 39.1. The City agrees to furnish an electronic copy of the following to the Union:
 - a. Revisions to Job Classification Specifications.
 - b. Semi-annual list of all Employees in the Bargaining Unit, including classification, date of hire, and departmental assignment; home address, zip code, and home telephone number will be provided in the months of April and October, each year.
 - c. Bi-weekly list of Employees hired into or separated from the Bargaining Unit.
 - d. Safety Committee Meeting Minutes.
- 39.2. The parties agree that the City will not have any liability if they inadvertently neglect to provide any of the above-mentioned services to the Union.
- 39.3. The City will provide 100 printed copies and an electronic (pdf) copy of the Agreement to the Union at no charge.
- 39.4. The Union shall continue to maintain a locked mailbox in the Human Resources Office for correspondence from the City to the Union which is not delivered electronically or as a supplement to electronic correspondence. Notices shall be date stamped by both the City and the Union.

ARTICLE 40 - SERVICE POINTS - CIVIL SERVICE EXAMS

- 40.1. All Employees of this Bargaining Unit shall receive 1/2 point per full year of consecutive City of Hollywood service credited on any Civil Service exam taken. Part-Time Employees shall receive 1/4 point per full year of consecutive City of Hollywood service credited on any Civil Service exam. These service points will be added in addition to the test score of such exams, and the total of both shall be the final score of Employees. These City of Hollywood service points shall be separate from any Veteran's points due to Employees. To utilize service points, Employees must first obtain a passing grade.
- 40.2. All vacant positions listed in Article 40.5 below shall be posted as "Open Competitive", meaning the application process shall be open to both internal and external applicants to apply simultaneously. Internal qualified AFSCME bargaining unit employees who apply will receive first consideration by the hiring department. First consideration means that all qualified internal AFSCME bargaining unit applicants shall be referred by Human Resources to the hiring department for review and consideration prior to any external applicants being reviewed and considered. The hiring department must complete its review and examination of qualified internal AFSCME bargaining unit applicants and notify Human Resources of the decision before external candidates can be provided. The department must provide justification for non-selection of internal candidates. If no internal AFSCME bargaining unit applicant is selected for the position following this review and examination process, Human Resources shall then provide the qualified external applicants to the hiring department for further consideration.
- 40.3 The exam process and content for all open and closed civil service exams will be determined by the City, provided that changes to any exam content or process are not arbitrary or capricious. In all instances where an oral panel will be utilized for the exam process, the City will be guided by the limitations defined in Section 40.4.
- 40.4 Oral examinations will normally be conducted by a board consisting of three members; however, due to unexpected cancellations, two members are acceptable. The oral board members will be chosen from a list of trained interviewers on a rotating basis to the greatest extent possible. For each specific oral examination, no person shall serve

on the board who has a familial relationship, or business association with any of the candidates. No person shall be allowed to continue on a specific board if he/she has been contacted by the hiring Department/Office on behalf of or against any of the candidates.

40.5 The following positions shall be considered promotional opportunities. Additions and deletions to this list of positions may be made upon mutual agreement between the City and the Union. Promotional Opportunities shall mean that an Employee may compete for a promotional opportunity if eligible by meeting the minimum qualifications of the advertised position.

Administrative Specialist II

Administrative Assistant I

Assistant Permit Services Manager

Building Compliance Officer

Building Compliance Administrator

Building Coordinator

Chief Mechanic

Chief Utility Mechanic

Code Compliance Support Coordinator

Crime Scene Technician II

Crime Scene Unit Supervisor

Customer Service Representative II

Customer Service Representative III

Development Services Support Coordinator

GIS Analyst

Head Cashier

Irrigation and Grounds Maintenance Supervisor

Lead Custodian

Lead Parking Garage Technician

Lead Parking Enforcement Officer

Maintenance Technician

Marine Safety Lieutenant

Meter Repair Technician II

Parking Operations Supervisor

Parking Services Representative II

Park Ranger II

Permit Services Representative II

Permit Services Representative III

Permit Services Supervisor

Permit Services Support Coordinator

Plans Examiner

Property and Storeroom Supervisor

Public Works Technician II

Public Works Technician III

Public Works Technician IV

Public Works Technician V

Procurement Specialist

Recreation Aide II

Recreation Coordinator

Recreation Program Supervisor

Senior Accounting Clerk

Senior Billing Clerk

Senior Environmental Inspector

Senior Parking Operations Technician

Senior Procurement Specialist

Senior Structural Plans Examiner

Senior Utility Engineering Inspector

Senior Utility Field Technician

Storekeeper

Storekeeper Supervisor

Stores Clerk

Street Maintenance Supervisor

Teletype Supervisor

Treatment Plant Mechanic II

Utility Engineering Inspector

Utility Engineering Technician III

Utility Operations Supervisor

Utility Shift Supervisor – Wastewater

Utility Shift Supervisor – Wastewater Rotator

Utility Shift Supervisor - Water

ARTICLE 41 - SENIORITY

41.1. Definitions:

- a. Seniority, as used in this section, is defined as the right accruing to Employees through length of continuous service that entitles them to certain considerations and preferences as provided for in this Agreement. Seniority shall mean the length of continuous service an Employee has with the City beginning with the date of hire. When there is a tie in Citywide seniority, the City will use the date stamp on the original application (for original appointment) for breaking the tie.
- b. Probationary Employees shall have no seniority rights. However, upon completion of an Employee's probation, he/she shall be given seniority credit from his/her date of hire.
- c. An Employee's continuous service record shall be broken by voluntary resignation, lay-off, discharge for just cause and retirement. If an Employee returns to work for the City in any capacity within five years of date of leaving, his/her seniority date will be adjusted by the length of absence.
- d. Part-Time Employees' who accept a Full-Time position must terminate employment as a Part-Time Employee and commence in the Full-Time position as a new Employee with a new hire date and shall not maintain their seniority. The position(s) listed in Section 41.1(e) are explicitly excluded from the terms of this provision.
- e. Part-time Ocean Lifeguards who accept full-time Marine Safety Officer positions shall maintain their vacation and holiday accruals earned as part-time Ocean Lifeguards but shall not maintain their seniority.
- f. Employees on approved leaves of absence shall not be considered to have had a break in service.
- g. There shall be no deduction from continuous service for any time lost that does not constitute a break in continuous service.

41.2. Use of Seniority

- a. Seniority will be used as provided in Article 14, Work Scheduling and Overtime, Article 28, Lay-Off and Recall, and Article 37, Vacations.
- b. The following priority factors will apply when making routine permanent shift assignments and work schedules within a job classification, unless a particular work group within a division unanimously agrees to continue the existing practice:
 - i. Efficient operation of the Department.
 - ii. Ability to perform the assignment.
 - iii. Seniority in time in grade.
 - iv. When "ability to perform the assignment" and "seniority in time in grade" are relatively equal, seniority shall govern.
- c. Should a senior Employee be excluded from a work schedule/shift assignment because of Section 41.2(b)(i) or (ii) above, the Employee will be informed, if requested, in writing of the specific requirements.

ARTICLE 42 - PREVAILING RIGHTS/BENEFITS

- 42.1. All prevailing rights/benefits of employment specifically included or specifically referred to in this Agreement, in addition to and including those stated or referred to in Section 42.2 and Section 42.3 below, shall be maintained in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement.
- 42.2. If a recognized prevailing past practice is challenged by the City or the Union, the City and the Union agree to engage in an informal hearing mediated by Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service ("FMCS") to determine if the matter in question is indeed a past practice. If it is determined that a past practice exists, the City and the Union will negotiate a Letter of Understanding to become part of the Agreement. If the parties do not agree, they will take the matter to instant arbitration with a binding decision.
- 42.3. The City will maintain its existing policy with respect to:
 - a. Shower time for Water and Wastewater-Treatment personnel, Underground Utilities personnel, and Beach Safety.
 - b. Permanent, non-rotating shifts by assignment:
 - i. Utilities Plant Personnel;
 - ii. Police Civilian Personnel, excluding I.D. Technicians and Community Service Officers.

ARTICLE 43 - WORKERS' COMPENSATION/SUPPLEMENTAL COMPENSATION

- 43.1. An Employee becomes eligible for Workers' Compensation benefits due to a jobrelated injury or illness shall receive a full paycheck from the City while in a workers'
 compensation status for up to 13 consecutive weeks from the date of injury or illness
 (regardless of when the first date of lost time due to that may illness/injury thereafter
 occur), with the identical wages and benefits which he would have received had he
 not been injured and had he continued to work his regularly assigned City
 assignments ("Supplemental Compensation").
- 43.2. In the event a Full-Time Employee, as determined by a City designated physician, is unable to return to work after 13 weeks from the date of the injury or illness, the situation will be reviewed by the City Manager or designee. The City Manager or designee shall extend the period of regular pay for up to an additional 13 weeks (for a maximum of 26 weeks). An Employee may request an additional extension up to a maximum of nine weeks beyond the 26 week eligibility period that began on the date of the Employee's workers' compensation injury/illness, provided the Employee's written request for extension, with supporting medical information, is received by the City at least 14 days before the expiration of the 26 week eligibility period that began on the date of the Employee's workers' compensation injury/illness. The decision to grant or deny this request for an additional extension of up to nine weeks shall be made in the sole and exclusive direction of the City Manager or designee, and that decision is final and shall not be subject to appeal or challenge via the grievance procedure found in this agreement or in any other forum.
- 43.3. Eligibility for the Supplemental Compensation benefit provided to those Employees in workers' compensation status under this Article shall never exceed the maximum of 26 weeks from the date of the Employee's workers' compensation injury or illness, unless the eligible Employee timely submits and is approved for an additional extension of up to nine weeks, in which case the eligibility for the Supplemental Compensation benefit under this Article shall never exceed 35 weeks from the date of the Employee's workers' compensation injury or illness.
- 43.4. An Employee who remains in workers' compensation status but who has returned to work during the 13 week, 26 week, or 35 week eligibility period, shall be paid their regular pay for time missed from work during the applicable eligibility period on an

occasional or intermittent basis to attend a required workers' compensation doctor visit or medical treatment and, as a result, they shall not have to use their own accrued or unpaid time for the work time missed to attend that required workers' compensation doctor visit or medical treatment during the 13 week, 26 week or 35 week eligibility period that began on the date of the Employee's workers' compensation injury or illness.

43.5. An injured Employee receiving Workers' Compensation benefits shall be evaluated by physicians chosen by the City. In determining the Employee's fitness for duty, the City Manager shall base his determination upon the tasks and duties performed by the Employee as set forth in the Employee's Position Description, which shall be provided to the physician. If the Employee may return to work in a limited or restricted capacity, based on the City physician's evaluation, the Employee would be permitted to perform duties on a temporary basis outside of their normal job classification and/or assigned department or division at their regular rate of pay. A determination of appropriate duty will be made based on the restrictions by the Director of Human Resources. When an Employee has been assigned to another Department/Division, that Employee will report directly and be supervised by that Department/Division. The supervisor within the new Department/Division will notify the Employee's original Division of changes in the Employees' status. The parties agree to regularly meet and discuss the status of the Employee's assignment relative to the restrictions, the efficiency and productivity of the alternate assignments. If the City Manager, based on the City physician's evaluation, determines that an Employee is physically capable of returning to work and performing his regular duties, the Employee shall return to work on his next regularly scheduled workday. If the Employee disagrees with the City Manager's determination returning him to work, the Employee may appeal that determination utilizing the State of Florida Workers' Compensation Statute. There shall be no appeal of this determination utilizing the grievance procedure set forth in this Agreement. If it is determined under the Workers' Compensation Statute that the Employee was improperly ordered to return to work by the City Manager, the Employee, in addition to his benefits under Workers' Compensation, shall receive from the City retroactive from the date that the City ceased payment to the present all Supplemental Benefits as set forth in this Article to which the Employee would

have been entitled had the City not improperly ceased payment.

- 43.6. In the event that the City Manager, based on the City physician's evaluation, determines that an Employee injured on the job is no longer capable of performing his regularly assigned tasks and duties as set forth in his Position Description, the Employee, if he disagrees with said determination and seeks to return to his former City position, shall have the right to obtain and submit to the City opinions/determinations from private Physicians that the Employee can perform his regularly assigned tasks and duties as set forth in his Position Description. In the event of disagreement of physicians, the parties shall each submit the name of one physician who specializes in the field of medicine involved with the two submitted physicians mutually selecting a third physician who shall examine the grievant and determine if the Employee can perform his regularly assigned tasks as set forth on his Position Description. The third physician's determination shall be final and binding on all parties.
- 43.7. Nothing in this Article is intended to deprive and/or shall deprive an Employee of any rights and/or benefits to which he is entitled under the provisions of this Agreement, any applicable Local Ordinances, or State or Federal Statutes.

ARTICLE 44 - CLASSIFICATION EVALUATION AND REVISION

- 44.1. It is the sole responsibility of the City to determine the job content, qualification requirements, duties, and the relative significance to the City's operation of each job within the Bargaining Unit. Whenever there is a proposed change to a position title, classification, or position description concerning the content, qualifications, and/or duties of a position within the Bargaining Unit, the City will bargain with the Union over the proposed change at least 20 calendar days prior to implementation of the change. The terms "job description," "class specification," and other similar phrases are all synonymous with the term "position description." Copies of any changes will be furnished to the Union during this review period. Should the City fail to notify and, if requested, bargain the proposed changes with the Union, such changes will not be implemented.
- 44.2. A request to study an individual position may be initiated by an Employee if the Employee believes that his/her position has changed so substantially as to warrant a change from his/her existing classification, title, and/or position description to another existing classification, title and/or position description. Change request(s) shall be submitted to the Office of Human Resources for internal study and review. Each request shall contain specific details in support of the request. Any changes recommended by the City because of the provisions of this Section shall be implemented according to Section 44.4 of this Article.
- 44.3. A request for study of an individual position may be initiated by the Department or Office Director if he/she believes that the position has changed so substantially as to warrant an evaluation and revision of an Employee's existing classification, title and/or position description to another existing classification, title and/or position description. Such request shall first be discussed with the concerned Employee for comment and then forwarded to Human Resources for internal study and review. Each request shall contain specific details in support of the request. Any changes recommended by the City because of the provisions of this Section shall be implemented according to Section 44.4 of this Article. This provision will only be used to consider an upgrade in the requested classification.

- 44.4. For requests as outlined in Sections 44.2 or 44.3 of this Article, the Human Resources shall report its findings and recommendations to the City Manager within 90 days of receipt of the request. Copies of the findings and recommendations shall also be sent to the Department/Office Director and the Employee. If a proposed change is approved by the City Manager, the change, and any pay adjustment, if applicable, will become effective at the beginning of the pay period following the approval. Any approved change in classification, title, and/or position description will not alter the performance review date for the Employee.
- 44.5. Limits: Reclassifications will be limited to less than 25% increases. Any reclassification determined by the City and agreed to by the Union of a 25% or more pay increase must be filled through the Civil Service process rather than the reclassification process.
- 44.6. Wage Increase: Wage increases for reclassification will be 5% of Adjusted Base Rate of Pay. If 5% of Adjusted Base Rate of Pay is less than the start of the pay scale, then the reclassification will result in the start of the new payscale.
- 44.7. Eligible Employees: Employees must have been in their present position at least six months prior to requesting a reclassification. However, this does not prevent the City from reorganizing and initiating negotiations with the Union for positions where incumbents have less than six months' experience, or for vacant positions.

ARTICLE 45 - SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL

- 45.1. Employees assigned to shiftwork where their work hours fall between 12 midnight to 8:00 A.M. shall receive an additional \$0.90 perhour.
- 45.2. Employees whose shift is scheduled from 4:00 A.M. to 12 noon shall be given a shift differential of \$0.90 per hour only for hours worked between 4:00 A.M. to 8:00 A.M.
- 45.3. Employees whose shift is scheduled from 12 noon to 8:00 P.M. shall be given a shift differential of \$0.70 per hour only for hours worked between 4:00 P.M. and 8:00 P.M.
- 45.4. Employees assigned to shiftwork where their work hours fall between 4:00 P.M. and 12 midnight shall receive an additional \$0.70 per hour for all hours worked.
- 45.5. Employees whose shift is scheduled from 8:00 P.M. to 4:00 A.M. shall be given an additional \$0.80 per hour.
- 45.6. The provisions of this section shall not apply to any Employee who is called in to work non-shift overtime.
- 45.7. Employees who work in departments where a regular 24-hour operation exists shall be paid as follows:
 - a. 4:00 p.m. to midnight or when the hours assigned are between these hours shall be given an additional \$0.85 per hour.
 - b. Midnight to 8 a.m. or when hours assigned are between these hours shall be given and additional \$1.25 per hour.
- 45.8. Shift differential pay shall not apply to Employees in the positions of Plant Operator I
 Rotator or Plant Operator I Trainee Rotator.

ARTICLE 46 – DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

The City and the Union recognize the requirements of the U.S. Department of Transportation's Drug and Alcohol Testing Program for Employee Drivers of Commercial Motor Vehicles as well as HR-012 – Drug Free Workplace, and HR-038-City Vehicle Drivers Policies and, as such, the City and the Union support the City's policy for testing those individuals who are mandated to be tested by the Federal Law and under the guidelines of the City's Policies.

ARTICLE 47 – EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM

- 47.1. To assist Full-Time Employees covered by this Agreement, where practical and feasible, to participate in training or educational programs designed to strengthen their abilities, which in turn directly benefits the City by assisting them in performing their duties, the City shall provide Employees certain terms and conditions as follows:
 - a. To be eligible to participate in the Educational Reimbursement Program, a newly hired Employee must have achieved permanent status by successfully completing the probationary period.
 - b. Employees must receive "satisfactory" or better Employee Performance Evaluations prior to the beginning of the course work.
 - c. Employees shall only be reimbursed for one job related degree at each level (e.g., one Associates or one Bachelor's or one Master's level degree).
 - d. Full time Marine Safety Officers may be reimbursed for classes taken to obtain a EMT certification under the provisions of this educational reimbursement program.
 - e. Employees shall be limited each fiscal year to a maximum total of \$3,000.00 annually for tuition reimbursement costs.
 - f. Employees who receive benefits under this program, who voluntarily leave the City's employment within two years of receiving such benefit, shall be responsible for reimbursing the City for the entire cost of the benefit.
 - g. The City Manager retains the discretionary authority to further limit or discontinue the tuition reimbursement program at any time in a fiscal year based on the availability of funds.
- 47.2. Employees will be eligible for City reimbursement for the costs of books and tuition in the following manner:

- a. In order to be considered for the Educational Reimbursement Program, all course work must be taken at an accredited college or university and must be properly approved prior to the beginning of the class by the City Manager or designee.
- b. Employees desiring reimbursement must submit a written request for approval from the City Manager or designee.
- c. Reimbursement will be for courses leading to college or post graduate degrees. Reimbursement will be provided for approved on-line coursework.
- d. The refund amount payable shall be based upon the fee schedule of a State of Florida's public university or college at the time the course is completed, although the Employee may be attending a private educational institution.
- e. When an Employee completes the approved course work, it is their responsibility to submit copies of the grades and tuition receipts to the City Manager or designee. The reimbursement procedure for related courses will consist of the following:
 - i. 100% reimbursement when a grade of "A" or "B" is earned.
 - ii. 100% reimbursement for successfully completing pass/fail courses.
 - iii. 50% reimbursement when a grade of "C" is earned.
 - iv. If the accredited institution only gives credit or no credit, a credit grade will be accepted as satisfactory completion and equal to a grade of "C."
 - v. Employees receiving aid or who have scholarship as well as Employees qualifying for benefits under State or Federal programs are eligible for reimbursement under this policy. However, financial assistance from other sources will offset any reimbursements payable by the City.

ARTICLE 48 – BLOOD TIME COMPENSATION

Effective March 5, 2014, no blood time compensation shall be accrued for any Bargaining Unit Employees. Upon termination or when an eligible Employee submits the written election to participate in the DROP all blood time shall be paid at the member's then current Adjusted Base Rate of Pay plus Enhancements.

<u>ARTICLE 49 – REGULARLY SCHEDULED PART-TIME EMPLOYEES</u>

- 49.1. Regularly scheduled Part-Time Employees shall enjoy rights in all Agreement Articles except for the following:
 - Article 13 Certification Pay (except Section 13.7 shall be provided to the applicable Part-Time Employees)
 - Article 14 Work Scheduling and Overtime
 - Article 16 Voluntary Demotions/Lateral Transfers
 - Article 18 Pension and Pension Plan
 - Article 20 Sick Leave (except as provided below in this Article)
 - Article 21 Voting Time
 - Article 22 Contracting or Sub-contracting
 - Article 24 Health and Wellness Plan (except as provided below in this Article)
 - Article 28 Lay-off and Recall
 - Article 30 FMLA / Special Leave / Leave of Absence (except FMLA for Employees' who meet the minimum qualifications)
 - Article 31 Holidays (except as provided below in this Article)
 - Article 33 Bereavement Leave (except a s provided below in this Article)
 - Article 34 Jury Duty and Subpoenas (except as provided below in this Article)
 - Article 43 Workers' Compensation/Supplemental Compensation (except as provided below in this Article)
 - Article 47 Educational Reimbursement Program
- 49.2. Regularly scheduled non-seasonal Part-Time Employees who average at least 30 hours or more of work per week shall be eligible for the following benefits:
 - a. Sick Leave: three quarters (75%) of the sick leave accruals provided in Article 20.
 - b. Vacation Leave: three quarters (75%) of the vacation leave accruals provided in Article 36.

- c. Holidays: Six hours per holiday, as provided in Article 31.
- d. Wellness Leave: 12 hours annually as provided in Article 24.
- e. Bereavement Leave: One work week with compensation based upon the average hours worked in the previous 13 weeks.
- f. Health Insurance: In accordance with the Affordable Care Act Safe Harbor rate of pay method.
- g. A Health Reimbursement Account as provided in Article 24 to Full-Time Employees.
- h. A (non-matching) City contribution to a deferred comp 457 plan in the amount of \$1,000.00 to be paid annually on the Employee's anniversary date of hire.
- i. Jury Duty: as provided in Article 34.
- Workers' Compensation/Supplemental Compensation: as provided in Article 43.
- 49.3. Regularly scheduled non-seasonal Part-Time Employees who average more than 15 hours of work per week but less than 30 hours of work per week shall be eligible for the following benefits:
 - a. Sick Leave: 50% of the sick leave accruals provided in Article 20.
 - b. Vacation Leave: 50% of the vacation leave accruals provided in Article 36.
 - c. Holidays: Four hours per holiday as provided in Article 31.
 - d. Wellness Leave: Eight hours annually as provided in Article 24.
 - e. Bereavement Leave: One work week with compensation based upon the average hours worked in the previous 13 weeks.
 - f. A Supplemental Insurance Product in the amount not to exceed \$500.00.
 - g. A (non-matching) City contribution to a deferred comp 457 plan in the amount of \$1,000.00 to be paid annually on the Employee's anniversary date of hire.

- 49.4. Health insurance and HRA eligibility have been established as follows:
 - New Employees who the City anticipate will work 30 or more hours shall be initially eligible for health insurance and HRA limits at the same time as regular Full-Time Employees (first of the month after a 30-day waiting period). For eligibility for subsequent calendar years, their hours will be evaluated each October.
 - New Employees who the City anticipates will work between 15 and 29 hours will have a 12-month look-back provision for health insurance eligibility. In other words, newly hired Employee's hours will be analyzed on his/her anniversary date to determine if he/she is eligible for health insurance for the next calendar year. If he/she is eligible, he/she will have the option of obtaining health insurance for the next calendar year. For years thereafter, their hours will be evaluated each October for health insurance eligibility for the next calendar year.
 - New Employees who the City anticipate will work less than 15 hours are not eligible for part-time benefits.
- 49.5. For determination as to whether newly hired Part-Time Employees are eligible for placement into the non-medical benefits categories (i.e., sick leave, vacation leave and holidays) set forth in Section 49.2 or Section 49.3 above, the Employee will be placed into the appropriate non-medical benefit category, if any, on their hire date based on the weekly hours that the Employee is anticipated to work. Thereafter, the City shall monitor and reevaluate each Part-Time Employee's continued eligibility for the benefits applicable to their work hours, but the City agrees that absent a dramatic change in any regularly scheduled Part-Time Employee's work schedule, the Employee's benefit levels will be changed only in the beginning of the first pay period on October 1 in each year.
- 49.6. A Part-Time Employee who moves to a full-time position with the City shall maintain their accrued leave balances earned but shall not maintain their seniority.
- 49.7. Not later than August 1st of each calendar year, an employee may elect to redeem

up to a maximum of 40 hours of the unused annual (vacation) leave. Payment for such redemption to be made by or before September 10th following the redemption request.

ARTICLE 50 - SEVERABILITY

- 50.1. If any provisions of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, shall be rendered or declared invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining parts or portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. The parties agree to meet at a reasonable time to renegotiate a replacement provision.
- 50.2. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, conflicts with existing mandatory Federal or State Laws, or mandatory provisions of the City Charter, such provisions shall be renegotiated and the appropriate mandatory provisions shall prevail.
- 50.3. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application of such provision, is increased or modified by action of the State Legislature, the parties agree to immediately reopen negotiations on that provision and that both parties agree to negotiate in good faith to reach an expedient resolution. If after the issue is raised by either party and no agreement has been reached within 60 days, both parties agree to commence impasse resolution proceedings.

<u>ARTICLE 51 – DURATION OF AGREEMENT/EFFECTIVE DATES</u>

- 51.1. This Agreement shall be effective upon the date of ratification by the parties and shall remain in full force and effect until September 30,2028.
- 51.2. Specific provisions as to the effective dates, found in any various Articles of this Agreement shall not be affected by the provisions of Section 51.1 above. In case of conflict, the specific Agreement provisions shall prevail.
- 51.3. This Agreement shall automatically be renewed from year to year thereafter unless either party shall have notified the other in writing by April 2nd of the expiration year of this Agreement that desires to modify the Agreement, with negotiations beginning 30 days thereafter, or such other date as is mutually agreed upon. The terms and conditions of employment reflected in this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until replaced by either (1) a subsequently ratified replacement Agreement, or (2) actions resulting from the provisions of F.S. 447.403.
- 51.4. The employer recognizes and states that it is entering into this Agreement in good faith and that the City Manager, as the Chief Administrative Officer for the City, shall request adequate funding, through the City's annual budget process, to fund the provisions of this Agreement. The approval or disapproval of the City Manager's funding request shall not be subject to the grievance and arbitration procedure described in Article 29 but rather shall be governed by F.S. 447.309.
- 51.5. All Letters of Understanding entered into between the City and AFSCME prior to the signing of this Agreement have been incorporated into this Agreement. Grievance Settlement Agreements are not included in the attached letters of understanding but said settlement agreements shall remain in full force and effect.

Damaris Henlon, City Attorney

EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, having been duly ratified by vote of the members of the Bargaining Unit covered hereunder, and the City Commission of the City of Hollywood, is executed with the signature affixed hereto.

Dated this 16th day of	October, 2025.
WITNESSES: As to Local 2432 Incer blian BE96BU/837B8480 Signed by: Siana Lakhan BOCOBESSF 1020413	HOLLYWOOD, FLORIDA, CITY EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2432, AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES (AFL-CIO) By: By: Bogdan Corsovic, President Date: 10/6/2025
As to the City Docusigned by: Tammie Hedder AD09103538A0409	CITY OF HOLLYWOOD, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida By: DS DS DS Attest: DS DS DS DATE: Attest:
	Approved: Patricia Cerny, City Clerk George R. Keller, Jr. CPPT George R. Keller, Jr., CPPT, City Manager Approved: Adam Reichbach Raelin Storey, Assistant City Manager Approved: Approved: Approved: Patricia Cerny, City Clerk George R. Keller, Jr., CPPT Adam Reichbach Raelin Storey, Assistant City Manager Approved: Approved: Approved:
Docusigned by: **Bamaris Henlon** FOTCB57F2519477 APROVED AS TO FORM:	Stephanie Tinsley, Finance Director

APPENDIX A - PERC CERTIFICATION 2000 AND 2018

PERC Certifications can be found here: PERC Certification

APPENDIX B - CLASSIFICATION TITLES AND SALARY RANGES

General Pay Grades and Pay Ranges FY26

Pay Grade		Annu	ıalize	ed		Но	urly	
ray Graue	[Minimum		Maximum	Mi	nimum	M	aximum
G1	\$	27,958.06	\$	42,496.78	\$	13.44	\$	20.43
G2	\$	28,656.76	\$	43,558.37	\$	13.78	\$	20.94
G3	\$	29,372.69	\$	44,647.02	\$	14.12	\$	21.46
G4	\$	30,107.05	\$	45,762.74	\$	14.47	\$	22.00
G5	\$	30,859.90	\$	46,906.74	\$	14.84	\$	22.55
G6	\$	31,631.18	\$	48,079.05	\$	15.21	\$	23.11
G7	\$	32,422.14	\$	49,282.10	\$	15.59	\$	23.69
G8	\$	33,232.78	\$	50,513.45	\$	15.98	\$	24.29
G9	\$	34,063.11	\$	51,775.54	\$	16.38	\$	24.89
G10	\$	34,914.35	\$	53,069.61	\$	16.79	\$	25.51
G11	\$	35,787.74	\$	54,396.91	\$	17.21	\$	26.15
G12	\$	36,682.03	\$	55,756.20	\$	17.64	\$	26.81
G13	\$	37,599.69	\$	57,151.14	\$	18.08	\$	27.48
G14	\$	38,539.50	\$	58,580.54	\$	18.53	\$	28.16
G15	\$	39,502.68	\$	60,044.37	\$	18.99	\$	28.87
G16	\$	40,490.46	\$	61,545.11	\$	19.47	\$	29.59
G17	\$	41,502.85	\$	63,083.99	\$	19.95	\$	30.33
G18	\$	42,539.84	\$	64,660.98	\$	20.45	\$	31.09
G19	\$	43,603.89	\$	66,277.36	\$	20.96	\$	31.86
G20	\$	44,693.77	\$	67,934.33	\$	21.49	\$	32.66
G21	\$	45,810.71	\$	69,631.89	\$	22.02	\$	33.48
G22	\$	46,955.94	\$	71,372.50	\$	22.57	\$	34.31
G23	\$	48,129.48	\$	73,157.40	\$	23.14	\$	35.17
G24	\$	49,332.53	\$	74,985.34	\$	23.72	\$	36.05
G25	\$	50,566.33	\$	76,861.27	\$	24.31	\$	36.95
G26	\$	51,830.89	\$	78,782.71	\$	24.92	\$	37.88
G27	\$	53,126.21	\$	80,752.13	\$	25.54	\$	38.82
G28	\$	54,454.73	\$	82,770.75	\$	26.18	\$	39.79
G29	\$	55,816.46	\$	84,841.03	\$	26.83	\$	40.79
G30	\$	57,211.41	\$	86,961.75	\$	27.51	\$	41.81
G31	\$	58,642.04	\$	89,135.36	\$	28.19	\$	42.85
G32	\$	60,108.33	\$	91,364.33	\$	28.90	\$	43.93
G33	\$	61,611.54	\$	93,649.88	\$	29.62	\$	45.02
G34	\$	63,151.65	\$	95,990.79	\$	30.36	\$	46.15
G35	\$	64,729.88	\$	98,389.51	\$	31.12	\$	47.30
G36	\$	66,348.72	\$	100,849.75	\$	31.90	\$	48.49
G37	\$	68,006.91	\$	103,370.25	\$	32.70	\$	49.70
G38	\$	69,706.93	\$	105,954.72	\$	33.51	\$	50.94

G39	\$ 71,450.00	\$ 108,604.39	\$ 34.35	\$ 52.21
G40	\$ 73,236.12	\$ 111,319.26	\$ 35.21	\$ 53.52
G41	\$ 75,066.53	\$ 114,100.54	\$ 36.09	\$ 54.86
G42	\$ 76,943.69	\$ 116,954.40	\$ 36.99	\$ 56.23
G43	\$ 78,867.59	\$ 119,878.39	\$ 37.92	\$ 57.63
G44	\$ 80,839.47	\$ 122,876.18	\$ 38.87	\$ 59.08
G45	\$ 82,860.54	\$ 125,947.78	\$ 39.84	\$ 60.55
G46	\$ 84,932.05	\$ 129,096.87	\$ 40.83	\$ 62.07
G47	\$ 87,055.24	\$ 132,323.47	\$ 41.85	\$ 63.62
G48	\$ 89,231.30	\$ 135,631.25	\$ 42.90	\$ 65.21
G49	\$ 91,461.51	\$ 139,021.44	\$ 43.97	\$ 66.84
G50	\$ 93,748.29	\$ 142,497.75	\$ 45.07	\$ 68.51
G51	\$ 96,091.66	\$ 146,058.93	\$ 46.20	\$ 70.22
G52	\$ 98,493.95	\$ 149,710.40	\$ 47.35	\$ 71.98

General Pay Grades and Pay Ranges FY27

Day Crada	Annualized		Hourly				
Pay Grade	Minimum		Maximum	Mi	nimum	M	laximum
G1	\$ 28,517.22	\$	43,346.72	\$	13.71	\$	20.84
G2	\$ 29,229.89	\$	44,429.53	\$	14.05	\$	21.36
G3	\$ 29,960.14	\$	45,539.96	\$	14.40	\$	21.89
G4	\$ 30,709.20	\$	46,677.99	\$	14.76	\$	22.44
G5	\$ 31,477.09	\$	47,844.87	\$	15.13	\$	23.00
G6	\$ 32,263.80	\$	49,040.63	\$	15.51	\$	23.58
G7	\$ 33,070.58	\$	50,267.74	\$	15.90	\$	24.17
G8	\$ 33,897.44	\$	51,523.72	\$	16.30	\$	24.77
G9	\$ 34,744.38	\$	52,811.05	\$	16.70	\$	25.39
G10	\$ 35,612.63	\$	54,131.00	\$	17.12	\$	26.02
G11	\$ 36,503.50	\$	55,484.84	\$	17.55	\$	26.68
G12	\$ 37,415.67	\$	56,871.32	\$	17.99	\$	27.34
G13	\$ 38,351.68	\$	58,294.16	\$	18.44	\$	28.03
G14	\$ 39,310.29	\$	59,752.15	\$	18.90	\$	28.73
G15	\$ 40,292.74	\$	61,245.26	\$	19.37	\$	29.44
G16	\$ 41,300.27	\$	62,776.01	\$	19.86	\$	30.18
G17	\$ 42,332.91	\$	64,345.67	\$	20.35	\$	30.94
G18	\$ 43,390.64	\$	65,954.20	\$	20.86	\$	31.71
G19	\$ 44,475.97	\$	67,602.90	\$	21.38	\$	32.50
G20	\$ 45,587.64	\$	69,293.01	\$	21.92	\$	33.31
G21	\$ 46,726.92	\$	71,024.53	\$	22.46	\$	34.15
G22	\$ 47,895.06	\$	72,799.95	\$	23.03	\$	35.00
G23	\$ 49,092.06	\$	74,620.55	\$	23.60	\$	35.88
G24	\$ 50,319.19	\$	76,485.05	\$	24.19	\$	36.77
G25	\$ 51,577.65	\$	78,398.50	\$	24.80	\$	37.69
G26	\$ 52,867.51	\$	80,358.36	\$	25.42	\$	38.63
G27	\$ 54,188.73	\$	82,367.17	\$	26.05	\$	39.60
G28	\$ 55,543.82	\$	84,426.16	\$	26.70	\$	40.59
G29	\$ 56,932.79	\$	86,537.85	\$	27.37	\$	41.60
G30	\$ 58,355.64	\$	88,700.99	\$	28.06	\$	42.64
G31	\$ 59,814.88	\$	90,918.07	\$	28.76	\$	43.71
G32	\$ 61,310.50	\$	93,191.61	\$	29.48	\$	44.80
G33	\$ 62,843.77	\$	95,522.88	\$	30.21	\$	45.92
G34	\$ 64,414.68	\$	97,910.61	\$	30.97	\$	47.07
G35	\$ 66,024.48	\$	100,357.30	\$	31.74	\$	48.25
G36	\$ 67,675.69	\$	102,866.74	\$	32.54	\$	49.46
G37	\$ 69,367.05	\$	105,437.65	\$	33.35	\$	50.69
G38	\$ 71,101.07	\$	108,073.82	\$	34.18	\$	51.96

G39	\$ 72,879.00	\$ 110,776.48	\$ 35.04	\$ 53.26
G40	\$ 74,700.84	\$ 113,545.65	\$ 35.91	\$ 54.59
G41	\$ 76,567.86	\$ 116,382.55	\$ 36.81	\$ 55.95
G42	\$ 78,482.56	\$ 119,293.49	\$ 37.73	\$ 57.35
G43	\$ 80,444.95	\$ 122,275.95	\$ 38.68	\$ 58.79
G44	\$ 82,456.26	\$ 125,333.70	\$ 39.64	\$ 60.26
G45	\$ 84,517.75	\$ 128,466.74	\$ 40.63	\$ 61.76
G46	\$ 86,630.70	\$ 131,678.81	\$ 41.65	\$ 63.31
G47	\$ 88,796.34	\$ 134,969.94	\$ 42.69	\$ 64.89
G48	\$ 91,015.93	\$ 138,343.87	\$ 43.76	\$ 66.51
G49	\$ 93,290.74	\$ 141,801.87	\$ 44.85	\$ 68.17
G50	\$ 95,623.26	\$ 145,347.71	\$ 45.97	\$ 69.88
G51	\$ 98,013.49	\$ 148,980.11	\$ 47.12	\$ 71.63
G52	\$ 100,463.83	\$ 152,704.61	\$ 48.30	\$ 73.42

General Pay Grades and Pay Ranges FY28

Day Crada	Annu	alize	d		Но	urly	
Pay Grade	Minimum		Maximum	Mi	nimum	M	laximum
G1	\$ 29,087.56	\$	44,213.65	\$	13.98	\$	21.26
G2	\$ 29,814.49	\$	45,318.12	\$	14.33	\$	21.79
G3	\$ 30,559.34	\$	46,450.76	\$	14.69	\$	22.33
G4	\$ 31,323.38	\$	47,611.55	\$	15.06	\$	22.89
G5	\$ 32,106.64	\$	48,801.77	\$	15.44	\$	23.46
G6	\$ 32,909.08	\$	50,021.44	\$	15.82	\$	24.05
G7	\$ 33,731.99	\$	51,273.09	\$	16.22	\$	24.65
G8	\$ 34,575.39	\$	52,554.19	\$	16.62	\$	25.27
G9	\$ 35,439.26	\$	53,867.27	\$	17.04	\$	25.90
G10	\$ 36,324.88	\$	55,213.62	\$	17.46	\$	26.55
G11	\$ 37,233.57	\$	56,594.54	\$	17.90	\$	27.21
G12	\$ 38,163.98	\$	58,008.75	\$	18.35	\$	27.89
G13	\$ 39,118.72	\$	59,460.05	\$	18.81	\$	28.59
G14	\$ 40,096.49	\$	60,947.19	\$	19.28	\$	29.30
G15	\$ 41,098.59	\$	62,470.16	\$	19.76	\$	30.03
G16	\$ 42,126.28	\$	64,031.53	\$	20.25	\$	30.78
G17	\$ 43,179.57	\$	65,632.58	\$	20.76	\$	31.55
G18	\$ 44,258.45	\$	67,273.29	\$	21.28	\$	32.34
G19	\$ 45,365.49	\$	68,954.96	\$	21.81	\$	33.15
G20	\$ 46,499.40	\$	70,678.87	\$	22.36	\$	33.98
G21	\$ 47,661.46	\$	72,445.02	\$	22.91	\$	34.83
G22	\$ 48,852.96	\$	74,255.95	\$	23.49	\$	35.70
G23	\$ 50,073.91	\$	76,112.96	\$	24.07	\$	36.59
G24	\$ 51,325.57	\$	78,014.75	\$	24.68	\$	37.51
G25	\$ 52,609.21	\$	79,966.47	\$	25.29	\$	38.45
G26	\$ 53,924.86	\$	81,965.53	\$	25.93	\$	39.41
G27	\$ 55,272.51	\$	84,014.51	\$	26.57	\$	40.39
G28	\$ 56,654.70	\$	86,114.68	\$	27.24	\$	41.40
G29	\$ 58,071.45	\$	88,268.61	\$	27.92	\$	42.44
G30	\$ 59,522.75	\$	90,475.01	\$	28.62	\$	43.50
G31	\$ 61,011.18	\$	92,736.43	\$	29.33	\$	44.58
G32	\$ 62,536.71	\$	95,055.45	\$	30.07	\$	45.70
G33	\$ 64,100.65	\$	97,433.34	\$	30.82	\$	46.84
G34	\$ 65,702.97	\$	99,868.82	\$	31.59	\$	48.01
G35	\$ 67,344.97	\$	102,364.44	\$	32.38	\$	49.21
G36	\$ 69,029.20	\$	104,924.08	\$	33.19	\$	50.44
G37	\$ 70,754.39	\$	107,546.41	\$	34.02	\$	51.71
G38	\$ 72,523.09	\$	110,235.29	\$	34.87	\$	53.00

G39	\$ 74,336.58	\$ 112,992.01	\$ 35.74	\$ 54.32
G40	\$ 76,194.86	\$ 115,816.56	\$ 36.63	\$ 55.68
G41	\$ 78,099.22	\$ 118,710.20	\$ 37.55	\$ 57.07
G42	\$ 80,052.21	\$ 121,679.36	\$ 38.49	\$ 58.50
G43	\$ 82,053.84	\$ 124,721.47	\$ 39.45	\$ 59.96
G44	\$ 84,105.38	\$ 127,840.37	\$ 40.44	\$ 61.46
G45	\$ 86,208.10	\$ 131,036.07	\$ 41.45	\$ 63.00
G46	\$ 88,363.31	\$ 134,312.38	\$ 42.48	\$ 64.57
G47	\$ 90,572.27	\$ 137,669.34	\$ 43.54	\$ 66.19
G48	\$ 92,836.25	\$ 141,110.75	\$ 44.63	\$ 67.84
G49	\$ 95,156.56	\$ 144,637.91	\$ 45.75	\$ 69.54
G50	\$ 97,535.72	\$ 148,254.66	\$ 46.89	\$ 71.28
G51	\$ 99,973.76	\$ 151,959.71	\$ 48.06	\$ 73.06
G52	\$ 102,473.11	\$ 155,758.70	\$ 49.27	\$ 74.88

APPENDIX B - CLASSIFICATION TITLES, PAY GRADES, AND SALARY RANGES

Job Title / Business Title	PAY
	GRADE G26
Accounting Specialist	G26 G35
Accounts Payable Supervisor Administrative Assistant I	G26
	G17
Administrative Specialist I Administrative Specialist II	G22
	G30
Air Conditioning/Refrigeration Mechanic Assistant Permit Services Manager	G34
Assistant Planner	G31
Billing Clerk	G22
Building Compliance Administrator	G51
Building Compliance Officer	G44
Building Coordinator	G31
Building Maintenance Technician	G24
Carpenter	G30
Cashier	G14
Chief Mechanic	G34
Chief Utility Mechanic	G36
Citizen Resource Officer	G17
Clerical Specialist	G15
Code Compliance Magistrate Specialist	G26
Code Compliance Officer	G29
Code Compliance Officer - Animal Control	G29
Code Compliance Specialist	G29
Code Compliance Support Coordinator	G31
Community Service Officer	G24
Contract Compliance Coordinator	G31
Court Liaison Officer	G25
Court Liaison Specialist	G21
Crime Prevention Specialist	G24
Crime Scene Technician I	G28
Crime Scene Technician II	G34
Crime Scene Unit Supervisor	G43
Crime/Intelligence Analyst	G28
Custodian	G16
Customer Service Representative I	G22
Customer Service Representative II	G26
Customer Service Representative III	G29
Development Services Support Coordinator	G31
Digital Evidence Specialist	G24
Electrical Inspector	G44

Electrical Plans Examiner	G51
Electrician	G30
Electrician Assistant	G24
Engineering Inspector	G38
Environmental Inspector	G31
Equipment Operator	G24
Fire Equipment Technician	G22
Fire Plans Examiner	G51
Fire Prevention Support Coordinator	G31
Fire Rescue Logistics Technician	G25
Fire Timekeeper	G22
Fire/Rescue Apparatus Mechanic	G32
Fleet Mechanic I	G22
Fleet Mechanic II	G28
Fleet Mechanic III	G30
Fleet Service Writer/Expeditor	G22
Groundskeeper	G18
Head Cashier	G20
Housing & Social Services Coordinator	G28
Housing Inspector	G28
Irrigation and Grounds Maintenance Supervisor	G32
IT Support Analyst	G39
Laboratory Technician	G30
Laborer	G16
Landscape Inspector / Plans Examiner	G36
Latent Print Examiner	G37
Lead Custodian	G20
Lead Electrician	G32
Lead Parking Enforcement Officer	G28
Lead Parking Garage Technician	G28
Maintenance Technician	G20
Marina Attendant	G15
Marina Security Guard	G03
Marine Safety Lieutenant	G31
Marine Safety Officer	G28
Mechanical Inspector	G44
Mechanical Plans Examiner	G51
Meter Repair Technician I	G23
Meter Repair Technician II	G28
Mobility Coordinator	G31
Ocean Lifeguard	G24
Ocean Rescue Training Officer	G31
Park Ranger I	G16

Park Ranger II	G18
Parking Collections and Accounting Clerk	G25
Parking Enforcement Officer	G25
Parking Garage Technician	G18
Parking Operations Supervisor	G32
Parking Operations Technician	G25
Parking Services Representative I	G14
Parking Services Representative II	G17
Parking Technology Specialist	G20
Payment Operations Supervisor	G32
Permit Services Representative I	G27
Permit Services Representative II	G31
Permit Services Representative III	G32
Permit Services Supervisor	G33
Permit Services Support Coordinator	G31
Plant Operator	G31
Plant Operator - Rotator	G34
Plumber	G30
Plumbing Inspector	G44
Plumbing Plans Examiner	G51
Police Fleet Coordinator	G32
Police Operations Technician	G27
Police Records Technician	G17
Police Timekeeper	G22
Pool Lifeguard	G12
Pool Supervisor	G20
Process Control Systems Supervisor	G39
Process Control Systems Technician/Analyst	G36
Procurement Assistant	G28
Procurement Specialist	G31
Property Clerk	G24
Property Unit Supervisor	G33
Public Works Maintenance Specialist	G24
Public Works Technician I	G16
Public Works Technician II	G18
Public Works Technician III	G20
Public Works Technician IV	G24
Public Works Technician V	G28
Purchasing Clerk	G22
Records Analyst	G24
Records Technician	G16
Recreation Aide	G02
Recreation Aide II	G11

Recreation Communications Coordinator	G30
Recreation Coordinator	G30
Recreation Courier	G12
Recreation Leader	G18
Recreation Maintenance Supervisor	G32
Recreation Program Supervisor	G34
Recycling Coordinator	G27
Sanitation Code Compliance Officer	G29
Seasonal Recreation Aide	G02
Senior Billing Clerk	G26
Senior CADD Operator	G36
Senior Environmental Inspector	G34
Senior Laboratory Technician	G33
Senior Parking Operations Technician	G28
Senior Pool Lifeguard	G17
Senior Structural Plans Examiner	G52
Senior Utilities Engineering Inspector	G40
Senior Utility Field Technician	G27
Special Events Coordinator	G30
Storekeeper	G19
Storekeeper Supervisor	G32
Stores Clerk	G20
Street Maintenance Supervisor	G32
Structural Inspector	G44
Structural Plans Examiner	G51
Teletype Operator	G25
Teletype Supervisor	G33
Traffic Infraction Enforcement Officer	G40
Treatment Plant Mechanic I	G27
Treatment Plant Mechanic II	G29
Utilities Administrative Procurement Coordinator	G31
Utilities Contracts Technician	G28
Utilities Engineering Inspector	G38
Utilities Instrumentation and Control Systems Specialist	G34
Utility Field Technician	G22
Utility Operations Coordinator	G27
Utility Operations Supervisor	G36
Utility Shift Supervisor-Wastewater	G36
Utility Shift Supervisor-Water	G36
Zoning Plans Reviewer and Inspector	G38